
 

 

 

 
To: Chair and Members of the Planning 

Committee 
Date: 

 
3 February 2022 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824 712589 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30 
AM on WEDNESDAY, 9 FEBRUARY 2022 via VIDEO CONFERENCE. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
G Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
AGENDA 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 

identified to be considered at this meeting. 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 

meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 

Government Act, 1972. 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 12) 

 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting 

held on the 12 January 2022 (copy attached). 

APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (ITEMS 5 - 8) - 
 
5 APPLICATION NO. 02/2021/1179 - LAND AT (PART GARDEN OF) LLYS 

GWYN, BRYN GOODMAN, RUTHIN  (Pages 13 - 48) 

 To consider an application for the Erection of 2 no. detached dwellings and 

associated works at land at (part garden of) Llys Gwyn, Bryn Goodman, 

Ruthin (copy attached). 

Public Document Pack



 

6 APPLICATION NO. 18/2021/0533 - GLAN Y WERN FARM, WHITCHURCH 
ROAD, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH  (Pages 49 - 86) 

 To consider an application for the erection of 2 agricultural buildings for the 

housing of livestock. Installation of feed silo and under ground effluent tank. 

Formation of hardstandings and surface water attenuation pond, landscaping 

and associated works at Glan Y Wern Farm, Whitchurch Road, Llandyrnog 

Denbigh (copy attached). 

7 APPLICATION NO. 23/2021/0927 - LAND ADJACENT TO DOLWAR, 
LLANRHAEADR, DENBIGH  (Pages 87 - 120) 

 To consider an application with details of appearance, landscaping and scale 

of 33 no. dwellings submitted in accordance with condition no. 1 of outline 

planning permission code no. 23/2016/0557 (reserved matters application) at 

land adjacent to Dolwar, Llanrhaeadr, Denbigh (copy attached). 

8 APPLICATION NO. 41/2021/1199 - BRYN FFYNNON, BODFARI, 
DENBIGH  (Pages 121 - 15) 

 To consider an application for the Erection of a garden implement store 

(retrospective application) Bryn Ffynnon, Bodfari, Denbigh (copy attached) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Councillor Joe Welch (Chair) 
 

Councillor Christine Marston (Vice-
Chair) 
 

Joan Butterfield 
Ellie Chard 
Ann Davies 
Gwyneth Ellis 
Peter Evans 
Alan Hughes 
Brian Jones 
Tina Jones 
Gwyneth Kensler 
 

Melvyn Mile 
Bob Murray 
Merfyn Parry 
Pete Prendergast 
Peter Scott 
Tony Thomas 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Emrys Wynne 
Mark Young 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 
 



WELCOME TO DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

HOW THE MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED 
 – Virtual arrangements June 2020 

 
Unless the Chair of the Committee advises to the contrary, the order in which the main items will be taken will follow the 
agenda set out at the front of this report. 
 

 

General introduction 
 
The Chair will open the meeting at 9.30am and welcome everyone to the Planning Committee. 
 
The Chair will ask if there are any apologies for absence and declarations of interest. 
 
The Chair will invite Officers to make a brief introduction to matters relevant to the meeting. 
 
Officers will outline as appropriate items where we have received requests for deferral, withdrawals, special reports, and 
any Part 2 items where the press and public may be excluded. Reference will be made to additional information prior to 
the start of the meeting, including the late representations/amendments summary sheets (‘Blue Sheets’) and any 
supplementary or revised plans relating to items for consideration. 
 
The Blue Sheets' contain important information, including a summary of material received in relation to items on the 
agenda between the completion of the main reports and the day before the meeting. The sheets also set out the 
proposed running order on planning applications. 
 
In relation to the running order of items, any Members seeking to bring forward consideration of an item will be expected 
to make such a request immediately following the Officer's introduction. Any such request must be made as a formal 
proposal and will be subject to a vote.  
 
The Planning Committee currently consists of 19 elected Members. In accordance with protocol, 10 Members must be 
present at the start of a debate on an item to constitute quorum and to allow a vote to be taken.  
 
County Council Members who are not elected onto Planning Committee may attend the meeting and speak on an item, 
but are not able to make a proposal to grant or refuse, or to vote. 
 

 
CONSIDERING PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
The sequence to be followed 

 
The Chair will announce the item which is to be dealt with next. In relation to planning applications, reference will be 
made to the application number, the location and basis of the proposal, the relevant local Members for the area, and the 
Officer recommendation. 
 
If any Member is minded to propose deferral of an item, including to allow for the site to be visited by a Site Inspection 
Panel, the request should be made, with the planning reason for deferral, before any public speaking or debate on that 
item. 
 
Where relevant, the Chair will offer the opportunity for Members to read any late information on an item on the 'Blue 
Sheets' before proceeding. 
 
Prior to any debate, the Chair may invite Officers to provide a brief introduction to an item where this is considered to be 
worthwhile in view of the nature of the application. In addition the Officers may read out any prepared speech by an 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



interested party for or against the application. The speech provided against any application will be read out first. 
 
 
The Chair will announce that the item is open for debate and offer Members opportunity to speak and to make 
propositions on the item.  
 
If any application has been subject to a Site Inspection Panel prior to the Committee, the Chair will normally invite those 
Members who attended, including the Local Member, to speak first. 
 
On all other applications, the Chair will permit the Local Member(s) to speak first, should he/she/they wish to do so. 
 
Members are normally limited to a maximum of five minutes speaking time, and the Chair will conduct the debate in 
accordance with Standing Orders. 
 
Once a Member has spoken, he/she should not speak again unless seeking clarification of points arising in debate, 

and then only once all other Members have had the opportunity to speak, and with the agreement of the Chair. 
 
At the conclusion of Members debate, the Chair will ask Officers to respond as appropriate to questions and points 
raised, including advice on any resolution in conflict with the recommendation. 
 
Prior to proceeding to the vote, the Chair will invite or seek clarification of propositions and seconders for propositions for 
or against the Officer recommendation, or any other resolutions including amendments to propositions. Where a 
proposition is made contrary to the Officer recommendation, the Chair will seek clarification of the planning reason(s) for 
that proposition, in order that this may be recorded in the Minutes of the meeting. The Chair may request comment from 
the Legal and Planning Officer on the validity of the stated reason(s). 
 
The Chair will announce when the debate is closed, and that voting is to follow. 

 
The voting procedure 

 
Before requesting Members to vote, the Chair will announce what resolutions have been made, and how the vote is to 
proceed. If necessary, further clarification may be sought of amendments, new or additional conditions and reasons for 
refusal, so there is no ambiguity over what the Committee is voting for or against. 
 
The voting will proceed with the Chair going around all the Planning Committee members eligible to vote to ask for their 
verbal “For”, “Against” or “Abstain” vote. The votes will be marked down and the Chair will then announce whether that 
application has been approved or refused. 

Page 4



 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for planning permission 
made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which has made an application for financial 
assistance’. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE on 
Wednesday, 12 January 2022 at 9.30 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Joan Butterfield, Ellie Chard, Ann Davies, Gwyneth Ellis, Peter Evans, 
Brian Jones, Tina Jones, Gwyneth Kensler, Christine Marston (Vice-Chair), Melvyn Mile, 
Bob Murray, Pete Prendergast, Peter Scott, Tony Thomas, Julian Thompson-Hill, 
Joe Welch (Chair), Emrys Wynne and Mark Young 
 
Observers - Councillors Meirick Davies and Alan James 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 

Team Leader – Places Team (TD); Development Control Manager (PM); Planning Officer 

(PG); Principal Support Officer (JW), and Committee Administrators (RTJ and SJ 
[Webcaster]) 
 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alan Hughes and Merfyn 
Parry. 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interests were raised. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
No urgent matters were raised. 
 

4 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Planning Committee held on 15 December 2021 were 
submitted. 
 
Matters of accuracy –  
 
Members highlighted two errors within the minutes. Page 10 Natural Resources 
Wales was typed incorrectly, and Councillor Christine Marstons full name was not 
included. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2021 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Applications received requiring determination by the Committee were submitted 
together with associated documentation. Reference was also made to late 
supplementary information (blue sheets) received since publication of the agenda 
which contained additional information relating to those applications. In order to 
accommodate public speaking requests, it was agreed to vary the agenda order of 
applications accordingly. 
 

5 APPLICATION NO. 23/2021/0852 - LAND AT THE LODGE, LLANRHAEADR, 
DENBIGH  
 
An application was submitted for the erection of 6 no. holiday accommodation units, 
site office, and associated works (amended scheme) at Land at The Lodge, 
Llanrhaeadr, Denbigh. 
  
Public Speaker – 
  
Andrew Sumner (For) – thanked the committee for the opportunity to speak in 
support of the application. The scheme was for six bespoke cabins, which would 
provide holiday accommodation. The proposed application would complement other 
activities at the Lodge and the local area by increasing footfall. 
  
The public speaker was aware that the previous proposals at the site had caused 
some concerns regarding the effect on the historical landscape. CADW stated the 
concerns as the development was on the former Llanrhaeadr Hall parkland. The 
fears which CADW raised made the applicant change the design of the proposal. 
The application which was being proposed had been worked upon during 
discussions with CADW officers. 
  
In closing the public speaker highlighted that the scheme was to conserve some 
historical landscapes and incorporate them into the design of the proposed 
application. The application aimed to support the local area. The project was a 
significant investment and would help keep the historical value of the village, 
biodiversity, and to be a boon to the local economy. 
  
General Debate –  
  
Councillor Joe Welch (local member) gave members of the committee background 
on the application, which was being discussed. The application had been submitted 
previously. However, it was recalled to allow the application to be amended. The 
community council was split upon the application, with half showing support while 
the others objected. The local member wanted to know what mitigations could be 
done to ensure that the development would not be made into permanent housing in 
the future. 
  
Councillor Welch continued by querying whether the concerns raised by the 
conservation officer had been addressed in the application, as there were 
apprehensions with the application previously. The chair also asked why planning 
policy PSE 12 (Chalet, static and touring caravan and camping sites) has been 
considered in the report, also had planning policy PSE 5 (Rural economy) been 
taken into account. 

Page 8



  
Lastly, Councillor Joe Welch stated that he would like to include an additional 
condition on the application if it were approved, which was as followed – “The 
development hereby approved shall remain as the same planning unit as the 
Lodge, as shown edged blue on the location plan, which was the drawing received 
on the 17th October 2021, and should not be sold off as a separate planning unit”. 
This would ensure that there was a degree of control kept over the land 
  
Responding officers clarified that a planning application would need to be submitted 
if the site were to become a permanent housing development. The planning 
committee would decide upon the matter at that time. The conservation officer was 
happy with the resubmitted application. Regarding planning policy PSE 12 officers 
felt that it was not relevant to the application as it referred to static caravans, the 
units proposed were not static caravans. The application also would support the 
rural economy as was stated within planning policy PSE 5. 
  
Members queried whether the sewerage pipes running underneath the site were of 
concern, officers responded that the matter would need to be agreed upon between 
the applicant and Dwr Cymru. It was also enquired whether there would be a 
section 106 agreement with the application, officers responding that the agreement 
was unnecessary for the application. 
  
Responding to queries about whether the site could be used throughout the year, 
officers clarified that there were no restrictions on the site. 
  
Proposal – Councillor Mark Young proposed the application be granted with the 
additional condition offered by Councillor Joe Welch, seconded by Councillor 
Melvyn Mile. 
  
Vote – 
FOR – 14 
AGAINST –0 
ABSTAIN – 4 
  
RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED in accordance with officer 
Recommendations as detailed in the report, including the condition set out by 
Committee. 
 

6 APPLICATION NO. 46/2019/0806 - BOD HAULOG, THE ROE, ST ASAPH  
 
An application was submitted for the development of 0.75 ha of land for residential 
purposes (outline application including access) at Bod Haulog, The Roe, St Asaph. 
  
Public Speaker – 
  
Gwyn Davies (For) – The public speaker highlighted that the single issue with the 
application was flood risk. Natural Resources Wales’s (NRW) response to the 
Council was based on their interpretation of Technical Advice Notes (TAN15) that 
were unreasonable and extreme. The public speaker highlighted that NRW had 
ignored a vital section of the application’s flood consequence assessment. 

Page 9



  
Mr Davies said that there were two elements to flood risk. One was flood risk on 
sites. The areas within the proposed development would be raised where 
necessary, so if a breach were to occur, all the dwellings would remain flood-free. 
The second element was the flood risk on other dwellings due to the development. 
Flood modelling demonstrated if new buildings obstruct flood water flow, which 
would lead to deeper flood water elsewhere. 
  
The public speaker stated that the response from NRW only commented on half of 
the report from the applicant. The public speaker stated that NRW’s objections were 
based entirely on one flood risk analysis, which was whether the site was a 
greenfield site with no boundaries. However, by that assessment, any 
developments would cause a higher risk of floodwater. The public speaker 
highlighted that the proposed application was on a brownfield site and boundaries 
already existed. The pre-existing walls would already impact any flooding. However, 
the application would remove some areas of the wall, which would cause the flood 
levels elsewhere to drop. The boundary wall on the site, were present during the 
2012 floods, proved their integrity.   
  
General Debate – 
  
The chair invited members of the committee who attended the site meeting to 
speak before the local member. 
  
Councillors Christine Marston and Ellie Chard were both committee members who 
attended the site meeting. Both agreed that the site meeting was essential to 
realise the size of the site and the geography. 
  
Councillor Peter Scott (local member) thanked the chair for the opportunity to 
speak. The proposed application was for a development on a brownfield site; from a 
local standpoint, there had been only six objections to the application. There was a 
demand for housing for younger people in the community. The information shared 
by NRW looked at the matter, as if the flooding defences would to fail, and if the 
stance was taken with all applications in the area, they would all be refused. 
Councillor Scott highlighted that Denbighshire’s planning committee had gone 
against NRW’s recommendations previously. The applicant had shown flood 
mitigations within the plans.  
  
Proposal – Councillor Peter Scott proposed the application be granted contrary to 
officer recommendations, as the identified flood risks would be mitigated through 
the application. Councillor Brian Jones seconded the proposal. 
  
The officers responded to the raised points and praised all who spoke on the 
matter. The local member had highlighted the benefits of the application. However, 
the fundamental issue with the application was whether the development could 
increase flood risk to those who were already living in St. Asaph. Officers stressed 
that this was the clear guidance from NRW on the matter and that, on balance, 
Officers had to recommend refusal on that basis. The officers reminded members 
that, should they wish to go against their recommendation, they would need to 

Page 10



provide clear reasons. Should this happen, conditions could be imposed on the 
development and agreed with the local member. 
  
VOTE – 
FOR – 17 
AGAINST – 1 
ABSTAIN – 0 
  
RESOLVED that permission be GRANTED contrary to officer recommendations 
detailed within their report. 
 

7 APPLICATION NO. 07/2021/0684 - LAND EAST OF MYNYDD MYNYLLOD, 
LLANDRILLO, CORWEN  
 
An application was submitted for the erection of a 90m meteorological mast for a 
temporary period of three years at Land at Mynydd Mynyllod, Llandrillo, 
Corwen. 
 
Proposal – Councillor Gwyneth Ellis proposed the item be deferred until a later 
date, as she stated that there had not been enough local consultation on the 
matter, seconded by Councillor Emrys Wynne. 
 
VOTE: 

FOR – 10 

AGAINST – 7 

ABSTAIN – 0 

 
RESOLVED that the application for the for the erection of a 90m meteorological 
mast for a temporary period of three years at Land at Mynydd Mynyllod, Llandrillo, 
Corwen be deferred to a future meeting for the reasons set out by Councillor 
Gwyneth Ellis above. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD : 
 

Ruthin 
 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Emrys Wynne (c) 
Cllr Bobby Feeley 
Cllr Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

02/2021/1179/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of 2 no. detached dwellings and associated works 

LOCATION: Land at (Part garden of) Llys Gwyn  Bryn Goodman   
Ruthin LL15 1EL 
 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
02/2021/1179 

 Graddfa / Scale: 1:1250

Canol / Centre: 312778, 358459 

Dyddiad / Date: 2022-01-25 15:39:52

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2021 Arolwg Ordnans 100023408 © Crown copyright and
database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100023408

 

Page 15



Page 16



View of  the site facing 
south from the access 
off  Bryn Goodman

P
age 17



P
age 18



View facing north towards 
Llys Gwyn

P
age 19



P
age 20



View from the site facing east

P
age 21



P
age 22



View from the site facing 
south

P
age 23



P
age 24



View from the site facing west

P
age 25



P
age 26



Proposed site 
plan showing 
new dwellings

P
age 27



P
age 28



Proposed front 
elevation 

Proposed side elevation

P
age 29



P
age 30



Proposed rear and side 
elevation

P
age 31



P
age 32



 Luci Duncalf
WARD : 
 

Ruthin 
 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Emrys Wynne (c) 
Cllr Bobby Feeley 
Cllr Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

02/2021/1179/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of 2 no. detached dwellings and associated works 

LOCATION: Land at (Part garden of) Llys Gwyn  Bryn Goodman   
Ruthin LL15 1EL 
 

APPLICANT: Ian Roberts Roberts Homes Ltd. 
 

CONSTRAINTS: Within 67m Of Trunk Road 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

 Recommendation to grant / approve – 4 or more objections received 
 Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 

 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

 
RUTHIN TOWN COUNCIL- 
Objection based on potential overdevelopment of the site, adverse effect on traffic levels and 
environmental impact on the local wildlife. 
 
DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER- 
No objection subject to a condition being attached regarding no surface and or land drainage 
be allowed to connect directly or indirectly with the public sewerage network to prevent 
hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and safety 
of existing residents and ensure no pollution of or detriment to the environment. 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
- Highways Officer 

No objection. 
 

- Land Drainage Officer-  
 SAB approval will be required. 

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 

In objection 
Representations received from: 
Geraint Owain, 5 Les Tourettes, Chateauponsac, FranceGethin and Mari Hughes, Hafan Deg, 
Wern Fechan, Rhuthun  
Eric Owen, Tynyberllan, Wernfechan, Ruthin Basil Thomas, Dedwyddfa, Bryn Goodman, 
RuthinJ A Lloyd, Tegfan, Bryn Goodman, Ruthin  
R Bell, Pentir, Wernfechan, Ruthin  
Tim & Sherry Edwards, Coetmor, Ruthin 
K Almond, Bryn y Fedw, Bryn Goodman, Ruthin  
 

Page 33



Summary of planning based representations in objection: 
 
Principle 
Not put forward as affordable housing and local people cannot afford them. 
No need for the new dwellings with other developments in the area 
 
Visual amenity 
House sizes are too large for the plot, gardens are too small 
Not in keeping with the surrounding development 
Overdevelopment of the plot 
The dwellings should be built facing Bryn Goodman not in this orientation which is not 
sympathetic to the character of the area 
 
Residential amenity  
Overlooking concerns to the properties to the west and into back gardens and rooms of two 
adjoining dwellings on Wernfechan and Pentir 
Concerns over noise and car headlights 
Loss of privacy  
Loss of sunlight to the rear of property (Hafan Deg) 
Garden sizes too small for large properties 
 
Highways 
The road is in a poor state of repair and is dangerous for users 
Additional traffic using the road will exacerbate the problems along with the other developments 
on this road. 
Parking provision not adequate at the site for occupiers and visitors 
Single access for existing dwelling and 2 dwellings not acceptable 
Concerns over the safety of school children walking down Bryn Goodman by the increased 
traffic 
Concerns over the safety of the access from Bryn Goodman onto Greenfield Road with 
increased traffic. 
 
Ecology 
The field has been empty for over 10 years and has hedgehogs, dormice, crested newts 
occupying the site 
The trees to the south are home to owls and bats which will be impacted by the development. 
The existing trees on the site have been removed already 
 
Environment 
Renewable energy not considered as part of the proposal 
No refuse or recycling arrangement on plans 
Loss of trees already at the site 
 
Drainage 
Additional surface water run off onto smaller gardens below 
 
Other matters 
High hedges 
Maintenance of boundary hedgerow at certain height 
 
Building regulations 
Concerns over drive level and loading onto retaining wall at Hafan Deg 
 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 26/01/2022    
 
EXTENSION OF TIME AGREED: 11/02/2022 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 

Page 34



 awaiting consideration by Committee 
 

 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The application seeks permission for the erection of two detached dwellings on land 

which was formerly part of the garden of Llys Gwyn, Ruthin. 
 

1.1.2 The proposed dwellings are proposed to have a floor area of 205.4sqm and would 
measure 11m x 10.5m with a ridge height of 7.4m and eave height of 5m.  
 

1.1.3 They are proposed to comprise a entrance hall, lounge, snug, utility and WC and 
open plan kitchen/dining/family room to the ground floor and 4 bedrooms including 1 
en-suite/dressing room, family bathroom and study to the first floor. 
 

1.1.4 They are proposed to be clad in composite to the front gable and between the 
windows to the front and rear with white render elsewhere and a hipped tiled roof. 
They are proposed to have an attached flat roof garage to the side extending beyond 
the rear elevation measuring 6.5 x 3.5m with a height of 2.7m. 
 

1.1.5 The dwellings are proposed to be accessed via the existing access to Llys Gwyn (now 
separated by a boundary fence) with parking and turning provided to the front of each 
dwelling. No details have been provided of the materials for the driveways or access. 
 

1.1.6 The rear gardens are proposed to measure approximately 180sqm and would have a 
slope up to the east of nearly 2m from ground floor level. 

 
 

        
Proposed front elevation     Proposed side elevation  
 
 

 Proposed site plan  

Page 35



 
 

1.2 Other relevant information/supporting documents in the application 
1.2.1 None. 
 

1.3 Description of site and surroundings 
1.3.1 The site is located in a residential area along Bryn Goodman Road. The site is 

situated to the rear of Llys Gwyn and was formerly used as extended garden area 
which is separated by a hedge from the rear amenity space directly behind the 
dwelling Llys Gwyn. This area has since been fenced off to separate the garden from 
the application site. There is a mix of dwelling styles and sizes in the locality. 
 

 
Garden boundary of Llys Gwyn 
 

1.4 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.4.1 The site is located within the Development Boundary of Ruthin as defined by the LDP. 

 
1.5 Relevant planning history 

1.5.1 An application was refused in 1988 for the erection of a single dwelling on the site due 
to it being a form of back-land development. A resubmission was also refused in 1997 
on the grounds that there would be unacceptable residential amenity impacts and a 
lack of amenity standards retained as a result of the development.   
 

1.6 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.6.1 None. 

 
       1.7 Other relevant background information 

1.7.1 None. 
 
 
2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
02/733/96/PO Development of 0.1ha of land by erection of a dwelling (outline) REFUSED on 
10/01/1997 
 
The reasons included that the proposal was out of keeping with the character of the adjoining and 
nearby dwellings and would result in a degree of disturbance to Llys Gwyn due to the location of the 
access and a degree of overlooking and loss of privacy. The reduction in the garden area would be 
severely reduced as a result of the proposal which would be inappropriate for the size of the property 
at Llys Gwyn. The proposal would be severely overlooked from Llys Gwyn and adjoining residential 
properties with no street frontage of its own and lacking in adequate amenity standards. 
 
9/9122 Erection of a Dwelling REFUSED on 29/02/1988 
Reason: The proposal provides for a form of residential development out of keeping with the 
character of adjoining and nearby dwellings. It represents an unacceptable backland development 
with no separate access of its own, and no street frontage, which would detract from the amenity of 

Page 36



the area, particularly by way of potential overlooking and loss of privacy. It is further considered that 
the development would create an undesirable precedent which would result in similar proposals for 
adjacent land which the District Planning Authority would in all equity find difficult to resist. 
 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
 

Local Policy/Guidance 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 

  Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy BSC1 – Growth Strategy for Denbighshire 
Policy BSC3 – Securing infrastructure contributions from Development 
Policy BSC11 – Recreation and open space 
Policy VOE5 – Conservation of natural resources 
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Conservation and Enhancement of Biodiversity  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Parking Requirements In New Developments 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Planning Obligations  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Recreational Public Open Space  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Development  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Development Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Space Standards  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Trees & Landscaping 
 

Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11) February 2021 
Development Control Manual November 2016 
Future Wales – The National Plan 2040 
 
Technical Advice Notes 

 
TAN 1 Joint Housing Land Availability Studies (2015) 
TAN 5 Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) 
TAN 12 Design (2016) 
TAN 16 Sport, Recreation and Open Space (2009) 
TAN 18 Transport (2007)      

 
4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Section 9.1.2 of the Development Management Manual (DMM) confirms the requirement that 
planning applications ‘must be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted 
development plan for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise'. It advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned.  
The DMM further states that material considerations can include the number, size, layout, design 
and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the 
impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (Section 9.4).  
 
The DMM has to be considered in conjunction with Planning Policy Wales, Edition 11 (February 
2021) and other relevant legislation. 
 
Denbighshire County Council declared a climate change and ecological emergency in July 2019. 
In October 2020 the Council approved an amendment of its Constitution so that all decisions of 
the Council now have regard to tackling climate and ecological change as well as having regard 

Page 37



to the sustainable development principles and the well-being of future generations.  
 
The Council aims to become a Net Carbon Zero Council and an Ecologically Positive Council by 
31 March 2030. Its goal and priorities are set out in its Climate and Ecological Change Strategy 
2021/22 to 2029/30. The actions, projects and priorities in the Strategy directly relate to council 
owned and controlled assets and services. One priority of the Strategy is to promote the existing 
policies within the Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006 to 2021 and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (SPG) which contribute to environmentally responsible development. In preparing these 
reports to determine planning applications we therefore highlight the LDP 2006 to 2021 and 
appropriate SPG. Applications that are determined in accordance with the LDP 2006 to 2021 are 
environmentally responsible developments.  
 
Planning applications are assessed in accordance with statutory requirements including The 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016, national policy (Future Wales, PPW 11) and local policy (LDP 
2006 to 2021) and therefore they are assessed with regard to tackling climate and ecological 
change which is a material consideration. 
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to all statutory requirements, 
policies and material planning considerations which are considered to be of relevance to the 
proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4 Ecology 
4.1.5 Drainage  
4.1.6 Highways (including access and parking) 
4.1.7 Open Space 

 
 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 
4.2.1 Principle 

The main Local Development Plan Policy relevant to the principle of the development 
is Policy BSC 1.  This policy seeks to make provision for new housing in a range of 
locations, concentrating development within development boundaries of towns and 
villages. It encourages provision of a range of house sizes, types and tenure to reflect 
local need and demand and the Local Housing market assessment. 
 
Policy RD1 supports development proposes within development boundaries subject 
to compliance with policy criteria. 
 
The site is located within the development boundary of Ruthin as defined by the LDP. 
 
The principle of housing development is therefore considered acceptable and Officers 
would suggest the acceptability of the particular proposals therefore has to rest on 
assessment of the local impacts, which are reviewed within the following sections of 
the report. 
 
 

4.2.2 Visual amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development;  test (iv) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 

Page 38



skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
 
The Development Management Manual advises at paragraph 9.4.3 that material 
considerations must be fairly and reasonably related to the development concerned, 
and can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the 
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the 
neighbourhood and on the environment; and the effects of a development on, for 
example, health, public safety and crime. The visual amenity and landscape impacts 
of development should therefore be regarded as a potential material consideration. 
 
Objections have been received from the Town Council and members of the public on 
visual amenity grounds including that the proposal is not in keeping with built 
development on Bryn Goodman and it would be an overdevelopment of the plot. 
 
The dwellings proposed are two substantial, modern, two storey dwellings situated on 
a former rear garden previously associated with Llys Gwyn. The dwellings are 
proposed to have a separate access off Bryn Goodman and would have driveways 
and parking to the front and a sloping garden to the rear. 
 
A previous proposal for a single dwelling on the site was refused due to the dwelling 
being out of character with the nearby dwellings and that it would cause a degree of 
disturbance to the occupiers of Llys Gwyn.  
 
The dwellings on Bryn Goodman are predominately large detached dwellings set in 
large grounds and there is no uniform housing type in the immediate area. There has 
been permission granted in 2019 and 2020 for similar proposals at The Nook and 
Pennant on Bryn Goodman where former garden areas have been approved for 
development, see extracts of site plans approved below. 
 
 

                    
Pennant                      The Nook 
 
The layout of the proposal provides amenity space to the front and rear of the 
dwellings which is in excess of the 40sqm as detailed in the Residential Space 
Standards SPG.  Having regard to the comments received around overdevelopment 
of the plot, the total site area measures approximately 1232sqm (0.123hectares) with 
each plot measuring approximately 500sqm (not including the access). Policy RD1 

Page 39



requires residential development to be at a density of 35 dwellings per hectare, unless 
local circumstances dictate otherwise. The density of the development as proposed is 
16 dwellings per ha which is far below the advised density of 35 dwellings per ha. If 
the site were to be developed in line with the density required by policy, there would 
need to be 4 dwellings. The proposal is for 2 dwellings, and Officers consider this to 
be in line with the characteristics of residential development in the vicinity of the site 
and with respect to comments received, do not consider the proposal to represent an 
overdevelopment of the site. 
 
The proposed dwellings are of a large scale and would have a height of over 7m. It is 
acknowledged that the site is at a higher elevation than the land to the west but when 
they are considered from public vantage points such as Bryn Goodman Road, the 
proposed dwellings would be set back in line behind Llys Gwyn and do not project to 
the side of Llys Gwyn. It is considered that the dwellings are a sufficient distance 
away from the Bryn Goodman road at approximately 50m away, to not result in a 
significant visual amenity impact when viewed from this direction. Having regard to 
the views towards the site from the A494, located to the rear of Hafan Deg and Ty’n y 
Berllan, the dwellings are considered to be prominent in the streetscene and would be 
seen above the ridgeline of both properties. As Hafan Deg has limited screening to 
the front of the property, the new dwellings are likely to be clearly seen from this 
vantage point, however, in Officers opinion, the development would not appear out of 
place as this is a residential area of Ruthin and there is a mix of large detached, 
modern style dwellings set back from the trunk road in this location. It is not 
considered that the development would affect prominent skylines in this area of 
Ruthin. 
 

 
View of the site from the A494 to the west 
 
The plans have confirmed the render would be white in colour. Whilst the plans have 
not been annotated to indicate the colour of the proposed composite cladding, it is 
likely that the cladding would likely be stone (grey) in colour similar to that which has 
been installed to Llys Gwyn adjacent, but further details can be agreed by condition. 
Similarly, details of the roof tiles have not been specified on the plans, but could also 
be dealt with by condition. 
 
The plans show hedgerow would be planted along the southern boundary where a 
new fence has already been erected. No other landscaping arrangements have been 
detailed on plans. Having regard to the site clearance already undertaken and the 
objections received regarding the impacts to wildlife, Officers consider that a detailed 
landscaping scheme designed to deliver net benefit for biodiversity should be 
submitted for further approval and consider this should be controlled by an 
appropriately worded condition.  

Page 40



 
Having regard to the scale, design, form, massing and materials of the proposed new 
dwellings in this location, Officers consider that the design and detailing is acceptable 
and would not have a detrimental impact on the character of the area. 
 
Therefore, having regard to the proposal, the locality and landscape, it is considered 
the proposal would not have an unacceptable impact on visual amenity and would 
therefore be in general compliance with the tests in the policies referred to. 
 
 

4.2.3 Residential amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact 
on residential amenity; and test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of 
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or 
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust, 
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. and that it provides a satisfactory amenity 
standards itself. 

 
The Development Management Manual advises at paragraph 9.4.3 that material 
considerations must be fairly and reasonably related to the development concerned, 
and can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the 
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the 
neighbourhood and on the environment; and the effects of a development on, for 
example, health, public safety and crime. The residential amenity impacts of 
development should therefore be regarded as a potential material consideration. 
 
Objections have been received from local residents on residential amenity grounds in 
terms of the potential for overlooking and loss of privacy into gardens and adjacent 
properties, impacts from car headlights, loss of light to properties to the south and the 
garden sizes being too small for the size of the properties.  
 
The Residential Development SPG provides guidance on acceptable separation 
distances to protect neighbouring properties from overlooking, overshadowing and 
overbearing impact. 
 
The Residential Development SPG states that no more than 75% of a residential 
property should be covered by buildings.  
 
The Residential Space Standards SPG specifies that 40m2 of private external 
amenity space should be provided as a minimum standard for residential dwellings. 
 
There are residential properties surrounding the site on all sides. The nearest 
residential properties to the west facing from the front of the proposed dwellings 
would be Hafan Deg (Tracery) and Tyn’ y Berllan. The Residential Development SPG 
advises that the separation distance front- to -back should be 21m. The proposal 
would be in excess of this distance at 40m. Whilst it is acknowledged that the site is at 
a higher elevation than the properties to the west, it is not considered to result in an 
unacceptable degree of overlooking which would warrant a reason for refusal goven 
the separation distances involved. 
 
In terms of the impacts to the amount of light received at the properties to the west, 
having regard to the orientation of the sun throughout the day, it is not considered that 
the dwellings would unacceptably reduce the sunlight received by these properties. 
The Shadow Calculator tool (extracts included below) shows the shadow which could 
be created by the new dwellings during summer and winter. 
 

Page 41



      
Mid summer 9am       Mid winter 9am 
 
Having regard to the impacts to the properties to the south of the site, the Residential 
Development SPG advises that in a back - to- side situation, the separation distance 
should be 15m. This has been achieved at the site having regard to Number 15 
Haulfryn and Officers do not consider that there would be a detrimental impact to the 
residential amenity of the occupiers of this dwelling as a result of the development.  
 
Having regard to the impacts on the future occupiers of Llys Gwyn to the north, the 
back- to – side elevation distance would measure 16m which is just above the 
advised 15m in this situation as set out in the SPG. It is therefore considered to be an 
acceptable distance to not result in significant impacts to residential amenity. 
 
In terms of amenity requirements for the proposed dwelling itself, the internal floor 
space well exceeds the minimum requirements for a 4 bedroom dwelling as 
prescribed in the Residential Space Standards SPG. 
 
In terms of garden space, whilst the rear garden area is relatively shallow before it 
begins to rise up to the east, taking into account the front garden area, the total 
external area far exceeds 100square metres and therefore adequate garden space 
has been provided for the future occupiers of the dwellings. 
 
Having regard to the above, Officers would conclude the proposal would not 
adversely impact on residential amenity of neighbours and the proposal would provide 
a satisfactory standard of amenity itself. 
 
 

4.2.4 Ecology 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and 
where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment.  
 
Policy VOE 5 requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or 
designated sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests 
that permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant 
harm to such interests.  
 
This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) Section 6.4 
‘Biodiversity and Ecological Networks’, current legislation and the Conservation and 
Enhancement of Biodiversity SPG, which stress the importance of the planning 
system in meeting biodiversity objectives through promoting approaches to 
development which create new opportunities to enhance biodiversity, prevent 
biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where damage is unavoidable.  
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) sets out that “planning authorities must seek to 
maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of their functions. This means that 
development should not cause any significant loss of habitats or populations of 

Page 42



species, locally or nationally and must provide a net benefit for biodiversity” (Section 
6.4.5). PPW also draws attention to the contents of Section 6 of the Environment 
(Wales) Act 2016, which sets a duty on Local Planning Authorities to demonstrate 
they have taken all reasonable steps to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the 
exercise of their functions. It is important that biodiversity and resilience 
considerations are taken into account at an early stage when considering 
development proposals (Section 6.4.4). 
 
The Development Management Manual advises at paragraph 9.4.3 that material 
considerations must be fairly and reasonably related to the development concerned, 
and can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the 
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the 
neighbourhood and on the environment; and the effects of a development on, for 
example, health, public safety and crime. The ecological impacts of development 
should therefore be regarded as a potential material consideration. 
 
The application is not supported by an Ecological Survey and it is noted that 
extensive clearance has been undertaken at the site. Officers have noted comments 
received regarding the species which once inhabited the site but having sought 
advice from the Council’s Ecologist, did not conclude it was reasonable to request a 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal at this stage. However, Officers are keen to ensure 
that biodiversity enhancement measures are incorporated into and around the site in 
the form of bat and bird boxes, hedgehog holes in fences, native species hedgerow 
and tree planting and wildflower planting. Officers consider it reasonable to ensure 
these details are secured by condition to ensure that a biodiversity enhancements are 
installed at the site in line with guidance contained within PPW11. 
 
 

4.2.5 Drainage (including flooding) 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies 
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to 
flooding. 
Planning Policy Wales confirms that factors to be taken into account in making 
planning decisions (material considerations) must be planning matters; that is, they 
must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the public 
interest, towards the goal of sustainability. The drainage / flooding impacts of a 
development proposal are a material consideration. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) Section 6.6.9 states ‘The adequacy of water supply 
and the sewage infrastructure should be fully considered when proposing 
development, both as a water service and because of the consequential 
environmental and amenity impacts associated with a lack of capacity’. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) Section 6.6.22 to 6.6.29 identifies flood risk as a 
material consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 – Development and Flood 
Risk, which provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different 
sources of flooding should be assessed. TAN 15 advises that in areas which are 
defined as being of high flood hazard, development proposals should only be 
considered where: 
• new development can be justified in that location, even though it is likely to 
  be at risk from flooding; and  
• the development proposal would not result in the intensification of existing 
  development which may itself be at risk; and  
• new development would not increase the potential adverse impacts of a flood 
  event   
 
Representations have been received raising concerns over surface water drainage. 
 

Page 43



Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water have not raised objections to the proposal subject to the 
inclusion of suitable conditions being imposed if planning permission is granted. No 
objections have been raised regarding the connection to the mains foul sewer. 
 
There is no known flood risk at the site. The application proposes to install soakaways 
within the rear garden areas of the dwellings. As consent is required from the SuDS 
Approval Body (SAB) for the two dwellings prior to commencement, it is considered 
that Drainage Legislation will assess the acceptability of the proposal in greater detail 
but in principle the installation of soakaways is broadly acceptable in this location. 
 
 Given the comments of the technical consultees, it is considered reasonable to 
conclude that an acceptable drainage scheme can be achieved on the site. The 
proposals have been revised to show the proposed foul drain would run along the 
access driveway and not third party land. The proposals are therefore considered 
acceptable in relation to drainage. 
 
 

4.2.6 Highways (including access and parking) 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 supports development proposals subject to 
meeting tests (vii) and (viii) which oblige provision of safe and convenient access for a 
range of users, together with adequate parking, services and manoeuvring space; 
and require consideration of the impact of development on the local highway network. 
 
Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection 
with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors 
relevant to the application of standards. The Parking Standards in New Developments 
SPG sets out the maximum parking standards for new developments. 
 
With respect to domestic garages, the SPG advises garages may only be counted as 
parking spaces if they have clear internal dimensions, as suggested by Manual for 
Streets, for a single garage of 6m x 3m. If disabled access is required, these 
dimensions must be increased to 6m x 3.8m. 
 
These policies reflect general principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) 
and TAN 18 – Transport, in support of sustainable development. 
 
The Development Management Manual advises at paragraph 9.4.3 that material 
considerations must be fairly and reasonably related to the development concerned, 
and can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the 
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the 
neighbourhood and on the environment; and the effects of a development on, for 
example, health, public safety and crime. The highway impacts of development 
should therefore be regarded as a potential material consideration. 
 
Objections have been received on highway safety grounds by the Town Council and 
members of the public due to the increased traffic using the road which is already in a 
poor state and the impacts on the safety of school children using Bryn Goodman road 
and additional vehicles exiting onto Greenfield Road. 
 
The development would utilise the existing access point onto Bryn Goodman which 
currently serves the existing dwelling. This has been widened and divided to provide a 
separate access for the new development adjacent to the access serving Llys Gwyn. 
Onsite parking is proposed within the garage and on hardstanding to the front of each 
dwelling, and providing the garage is utilised, cars can turn within the site and 
therefore can enter and exit from the site in forward gear. 
 
The Highways Officer has raised no objection to the proposal. It is not considered that 
the number of vehicles entering the plot to the rear of Llys Gwyn, would cause 
significant harm or annoyance to future occupiers by way of noise and fumes, or from 
the increased amount of traffic in Bryn Goodman.  It is considered that the traffic 

Page 44



generation as a result of the two new dwellings would not give rise to a significant 
increase in vehicle movements on Bryn Goodman which would warrant a refusal on 
highways safety grounds. 
 
Whilst respecting the concerns raised by the Town Council and local residents, 
having regard to the views of the Highway Officer, it is considered that the site 
proposal complies with TAN18 requirements. It is further noted that parking is 
provided in accordance with the guidance contained in the SPG. Therefore Officers 
conclude the proposal would not give rise to unacceptable impacts on highway safety 
grounds. 
 
 

4.2.7 Open Space 
Policy BSC 3 of the local development plan sets the basic requirement for 
development to contribute, where relevant, to the provision of infrastructure, including 
recreation and open space, in accordance with Policy BSC 11.  
 
Policy BSC 11 specifies that all new housing developments should make adequate 
provision for recreation and open space.  All such schemes put increased demand on 
existing open spaces and facilities and therefore the policy applies to all 
developments including single dwellings.  
 
Table 4 in the Open Space SPG (adopted March 2017) sets out thresholds for on-site 
provision and financial contributions. It specifies that for schemes of 1 – 30 dwellings, 
open space obligations should be met through financial contributions rather than 
onsite provision, however 5.4.9 of the SPG does state that the thresholds are 
indicative, and onsite provision for sites of less than 30 will be considered on their 
merits. 
 
An Open Space Assessment and Audit Report has been completed by the Council 
and provides the evidence base for Policy BSC 11. The report assesses the quantity, 
quality and accessibility of existing open spaces in the County on a community area 
basis with some additional information on an electoral ward basis. 
 
On the basis of the evidence within the Open Space Assessment and Audit Report, it 
is considered that the proposal should make a financial contribution to mitigate the 
increased usage on the existing open space and equipment within the area.  
 
The proposal is for two dwellings, and in line with SPG Open Space, open space 
provision should be contributed to by way of a commuted sum payment. The current 
calculation for 2 dwellings is £2474.43. 

 
The proposal is considered acceptable in relation to open space policy subject to the 
requisite contribution being secured through an appropriate agreement. 

 
 

Other matters 
 
Well – being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the 
Council not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable 
steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being) 
objectives. The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application 
determined, how the development complies with the Act. 
 
The report on this application has taken into account the requirements of Section 3 
‘Well-being duties on public bodies’ and Section 5 ‘The Sustainable Development 
Principles’ of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The 
recommendation is made in accordance with the Act’s sustainable development 
principle through its contribution towards Welsh Governments well-being objective of 

Page 45



supporting safe, cohesive and resilient communities. It is therefore considered that 
there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the achievement of well-
being objectives as a result of the proposed recommendation. 
 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The site lies within the Ruthin development boundary and therefore the proposal is 

acceptable in principle. 
 

5.2 It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions and the completion of a section 106 style agreement with the Local Authority to 
secure the payment of £2474.43 to provide additional public open space in the community. 
The sum should be paid prior to the occupation of the first dwelling. The planning permission 
would only be released on completion of the Section 106 Agreement. Failure to complete the 
Agreement within 12 months of the date of the Committee meeting would oblige the 
application to be reported back to Committee and reconsidered against policies and guidance 
in place at that time. 
 

5.3 Subject to the necessary financial contribution to open space being secured, and necessary 
conditions being imposed, the proposal is considered to be acceptable and is recommended 
for grant. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 

 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 9th February 
 2027 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown 

on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any 
other condition pursuant to this permission 

 (i) Proposed elevation 1 of 4 (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A104 P01) received 19 November 
2021 

 (ii)  Proposed elevation 2 of 4 (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A105 P02) received 30 November 
2021 

 (iii) Proposed elevation 3 of 4 (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A106 P01) received 19 November 
2021 

 (iv) Proposed elevation 4 of 4 (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A107 P01) received 19 November 
2021 

 (v) Proposed ground floor plan (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A101 P02) received 30 November 
2021 

 (vi) Proposed first floor plan (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A102 P02) received 30 November 
2021 

 (vii) Proposed roof plan (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A103 P01) received 19 November 2021 
 (viii) Existing site plan (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A002 P01) received 19 November 2021 
 (ix) Proposed site plan (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A004 P01) received 19 November 2021 
 (x) Existing site location plan (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A001 P01) received 19 November 

2021 
 (xi) Proposed site location plan (Drawing No. TBP_19.032_A003 P01) received 19 November 

2021 
 
3. Prior to the application of any external materials to the dwellings hereby approved, full details 
 of the wall and roof materials, including materials, colour and finish, shall be submitted to and 
 approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
 accordance with the approved details. 
 
4. PRE COMMENCEMENT CONDITION  
 No development shall be permitted to commence until the details of the provision for roosting 

bats, nesting birds and hedgehog holes in fences have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the number, location and 

Page 46



specification of these features which shall be determined by a suitably qualified ecologist and 
shown on appropriate plans having particular regard to the external lighting scheme which 
shall also be detailed on the plans. The development shall proceed in strict accordance with 
the approved plans and details. 

 
5. Within 6 months of the commencement of development, a detailed scheme of hard and soft 

landscaping designed to deliver a net benefit for biodiversity, including details of all boundary 
treatments and containing a full planting list, has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include indications of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land, identify those to be retained and set out measures for their protection 
throughout the course of the development. 

 
6. All planting comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out no later than 

the first planting and seeding season following the commencement of development.  Any 
trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, 
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing. 

 
7. The facilities for the parking and turning of vehicles within each plot shall be completed in 

accordance with the approved plans before the dwelling to which they relate is first brought 
into use, and shall be retained as approved at all times thereafter. 

 
8. No surface water and/or land drainage shall be allowed to connect directly or indirectly with 

the public sewerage network. 
 
9. No external lighting shall be permitted to be installed or operated, including emergency  / 

security lighting, until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained 
to details thereof, including a light mitigation strategy, with measures to reduce light spillage 
onto foraging habitats for bats. The scheme shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
 
The reasons for the conditions are:- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development. 
3. In the interest of visual amenity. 
4. To protect the favourable conservation status of protected species. 
5. In the interests of ecology and visual amenity. 
6. In the interests of ecology and visual amenity. 
7. To provide for the parking of vehicles clear of the highway in the interest of traffic safety. 
8. To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and 
 safety of existing residents and ensure no pollution of or detriment to the environment. 
9. To ensure the favourable conservation status of protected bat species. 
 
 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



WARD : 
 

Llandyrnog 
 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Merfyn Parry (c) 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

18/2021/0533/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of 2 agricultural buildings for the housing of livestock. 
Installation of feed silo and under ground effluent tank. Formation 
of hardstandings and surface water attenuation pond, 
landscaping and associated works 
 

LOCATION: Glan Y Wern Farm  Whitchurch Road Llandyrnog   
Denbigh LL16 4HL 
 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 
18/2021/0533 

 Graddfa / Scale: 1:2500

Canol / Centre: 309808, 366335 

Dyddiad / Date: 2022-01-25 16:17:05

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2021 Arolwg Ordnans 100023408 © Crown copyright and
database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100023408

 

Page 51



Page 52



View of  the site facing north

P
age 53



P
age 54



View facing south towards 
Ancient woodland

P
age 55



P
age 56



View from the site facing west

P
age 57



P
age 58



View from the site facing 
east

P
age 59



P
age 60



View from yard towards neighbouring properties

P
age 61



P
age 62



View to the north showing location of  attenuation pond

P
age 63



P
age 64



Proposed site plan showing buildings and attenuation 
pond

P
age 65



P
age 66



Proposed side elevation 
of  calf  building

Proposed side elevation 
of  calf  building 
including silo

P
age 67



P
age 68



Proposed side elevation 
of  youngstock building

P
age 69



P
age 70



 Luci Duncalf
WARD : 
 

Llandyrnog 
 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Merfyn Parry 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

18/2021/0533/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of 2 agricultural buildings for the housing of livestock. 
Installation of feed silo and under ground effluent tank. Formation 
of hardstandings and surface water attenuation pond, 
landscaping and associated works 
 

LOCATION: Glan Y Wern Farm  Whitchurch Road Llandyrnog   
Denbigh LL16 4HL 
 

APPLICANT: Huw JonesA & M Evans Farms Co. Ltd. 
 

CONSTRAINTS: PROW 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

 Recommendation to grant / approve – 4 or more objections received 
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

LLANDYRNOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
‘Support the application’ 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
‘We have concerns with the application as submitted because inadequate information has been 
provided in support of the proposal. To overcome these concerns, you should seek further 
information from the applicant regarding pollution prevention and air quality. If this information 
is not provided, we would object to this planning application’.  
 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
 Public Protection Officer – 
 Informally commented that no details had been provided of the bore hole that is known to the  
 Authority at the site. Plans were submitted showing the location of the bore hole and no  
 objections were raised by the Public Protection Officer. 

          
 Conservation Officer- 

The proposed outbuildings are adequately screened from the listed hall and cottage by the 
existing woodland and will not impact the setting of the LB. 

 
 County Ecologist-  
 Raised concerns regarding the ammonia impact on woodlands and surface water 
 contamination with animal waste. The nitrogen levels at the site are likely already having an 
 impact to the ancient woodland sites around the farm 
 
 Flood Risk Engineer-  
 Awaiting response. 
 
RECONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

Page 71



Additional information provided on pollution prevention, manure removal, field heaps, borehole 
location, air quality in relation to the SAC and impacts to protected species. 

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
Continue to have concerns as inadequate information has been provided in support of the 
proposal. Further consideration is required by the Authority regarding air quality. 
Other sources of ammonia contributions could alter the findings of the report, and we advise 
that your Authority investigates, in line with Guidance Note 020, if there are other sources of 
ammonia emissions to consider that could affect the sensitive sites. 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
County Ecologist- 
From an ecological perspective, a woodland ground flora dominated by nettles indicates a 
nitrogen issue which is harming that habitat. The woodland trust propose that all ancient 
woodlands should be considered in assessments, but NRW are conveying the message that 
it’s only specific sites containing specific lichens and bryophytes are susceptible. I still believe 
that this development will further harm those ancient woodland ecosystems, but I suspect that 
on the grounds of the email below, we cannot object.  
 

 
RECONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
Additional information provided by agent in response to NRWs previous concerns. 

 
NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
Air Quality 
The process contribution of the development alone is below 1%, and therefore believe that 
the risk to the designated site is low. However, other sources of ammonia contributions could 
alter the findings of the report, and we advise that your Authority investigates if there are other 
sources of ammonia emissions to consider that could affect the sensitive sites. 
 
NRW consider the proposals have the potential to impact upon several SSSI. Providing the 
impact pathways referenced above for the SAC are adequately addressed, NRW consider the 
features of the SSSI will also be adequately safeguarded. 
 
Pollution prevention 
Satisfied that the developer has submitted information to address the concerns regarding 
pollution prevention previously raised. 

 
RECONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
Screening exercise of existing ammonia producers within 3km of the SAC boundary provided 
 

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
 Previous response remains valid. From the additional information submitted, the in-
 combination contribution would still be below the 1%, and therefore we are still of the 
 opinion that risks to designated sites are low. 
 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 

 
In objection 
Representations received from: 
Mark Griffiths, Glan y Wern Hall, Llandyrnog 
David and Margaret Jones, Hafan Dawel, Llandyrnog 
James Scott, Glan y Wern Cottage, Llandyrnog 
Emyr Morris, Penisa’r Waen, Llandyrnog 
 
Summary of planning based representations in objection: 
 
Visual amenity  
The woodland will provide little screening in winter and are not maintained by the Hall or Farm 
so there is no control over their maintenance. 

Page 72



Impacts on the views from the AONB and Offa’s Dyke Path 
 
 
Pollution  
Surface water from the cattle yard will be contaminated and will enter the river Clwyd and 
impact on ecology 
No mention on how slurry and manure generated will be handled.  
Impacts if the river floods- cross contamination 
 
Flood risk 
The discharge to the River Clwyd and land is low lying and within high risk flood zone. Risks of 
cross contamination.  
 
Odour 
Intensive cattle rearing will cause odour issues, attract flies and raise methane levels. 
No evidence of potential ammonia emissions impacts on neighbouring properties 
No details of how waste is to be stored or disposed of. 
 
Noise 
Additional highways movements on drive and over old cattle grid causing noise issues 
 
Highways  
Additional traffic using the lane by Pony Club events  
The driveway is a PROW and old Roman Road which should have an archaeological survey  
done on it before any further development is permitted. 
 
Principle 
Intensive farming of cattle in buildings should not be allowed. 
 
 
 
RECONSULTATION RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
 
In objection 
Emyr Morris, Penisa’r Waen, Llandyrnog 
James Scott, Glan y Wern Cottage, Llandyrnog 
 
Summary of planning based representations in objection: 
Inaccurate site plans not showing the location of the manege which could have in-combination 
impacts on drainage and the River Clwyd 
Flood risk concerns regarding contamination and dirty water tank sited on the land and manure 
storage locations 
The proposed site for the field heaps does not show the location of the agricultural workers 
dwelling and its proximity to neighbouring properties impacting on air quality. 
The existing woodland trees do not screen the site during the winter and the buildings are in full 
view of property 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 29/07/2021    
 
EXTENSION OF TIME AGREED? Yes 11/02/2022 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 

 delay in receipt of key consultation response(s) 
 additional information required from applicant 
 protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans 
 re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional 

information 
 awaiting consideration by Committee 

 

Page 73



PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The application seeks permission for the erection of 2 agricultural buildings for the 

housing of livestock. Installation of feed silo and under ground effluent tank. 
Formation of hardstandings and surface water attenuation pond, landscaping and 
associated works at Glan y Wern Farm, Llandyrnog. 
 

1.1.2 The 2 new buildings are proposed to be oriented so they are parallel to the existing 
buildings within the north eastern portion of the farm complex.  
 
 

  
Proposed site plan  
 

1.1.3 The first building is a proposed calf building and would measure 6.4m x 38.5m and 
would be arranged into 12 bays. 8 of the bays would accommodate 48 calves and 2 
would be isolation pens. The gross external floor area would measure 248sqm 
(including canopy). 
 

 
Proposed side elevation of calf building 
 

1.1.4 The building would be finished in pvc hollow core wall panels in mid grey colour. 
 

1.1.5 The building is proposed to have a mono-pitch roof of slate blue box sheeting with a 
height of approximately 2.270 metres on its south western elevation and a height of 
just approximately 3.021 metres on its north eastern elevation. 

 
1.1.6 A galvanized steel feed silo would be positioned adjacent to the south eastern 

elevation. 
 

Page 74



 
Side elevation including silo 
 

1.1.7 The second building is proposed to be for young stock and would externally measure 
approximately 42.300 metres x 12.953 metres (including roof overhang covering the 
external feed fence) arranged in 7 bays. Overall, the building would have a gross 
external floor area (including roof overhang) of approximately 548 sqm.  
 
 

 
Proposed side elevation of youngstock building 
 

1.1.8 The building would be finished in vertical spaced stained timber boarding with a 
natural grey coloured fibre cement sheeting. 
 

1.1.9 The building is proposed to have a pitched roof with an eaves height of 3.9m on the 
north east elevation and 3.6m on the south west elevation and ridge height of 5.8m. 
The floor area (including roof overhang) would measure 548sqm. 
 

1.1.10 A surface water attenuation pond is proposed to be located on lower lying land to the 
north of the farmstead with a controlled outfall discharging to an existing watercourse 
which flows to the west. It is proposed to have a capacity of 454 cubic metres to 
facilitate the attenuation of flows arising from the proposed and existing buildings. 

 
 

1.2 Other relevant information/supporting documents in the application 
1.2.1 Design and Access Statement, Ecology report and Drainage Assessment, 
 Supplementary Planning Note, Field Heap Locations, Borehole Location, in-
 combination Ammonia Impacts, response to NRW and response to Ecologist. 

 
 

1.3 Description of site and surroundings 
1.3.1 The site is located approximately 3km to the east of Denbigh and comprises of an 

agricultural unit of 109 ha with a further 123ha of rented land.  
 

1.3.2 The business has entered into an agreement with Genus Plc which involves the 
rearing of cattle of high genetic value and commercial value with technical support. 
This has replaced the conventional beef cattle enterprise formerly at the site. 
 

1.3.3 The site slopes up to the north east and there is a large area of woodland to the south 
known as the Rookery and an area of woodland to the north of the site. 

Page 75



1.3.4 The site is currently bare ground used for storage. A concrete yard separates the site 
from the existing modern cattle buildings 
 
 

1.4 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.4.1 The site is located outside of any development boundaries defined in the LDP. There 

is a PROW to the north east of the site. 
 

1.4.2 There are 2 non-statutory protected wildlife sites within 1km of the site- Pont Clawdd 
Ddu 623m away and Garn Clwyd Bella, 865m away. 
 

1.4.3 There are two residential dwellings, one a Grade II* listed building within 250m of the 
site. 
 

1.4.4 The Predictive Agricultural Land Classification is Grade 3a Good to moderate quality 
agricultural land 
 

 
1.5 Relevant planning history 

1.5.1 A prior notification application for the construction of a building for the accommodation 
of calves under Schedule 2, Part 6, Class A of the Town and Country Planning 
General Permitted Development Order 2015 (as amended) was determined that the 
proposed building would be located within 400 metres of the curtilage of a protected 
building and as such, would not constitute permitted development and accordingly 
planning permission would be required. 
 

 
1.6 Developments/changes since the original submission 

1.6.1 Details of location of the bore hole, field heap locations, pollution prevention and air 
quality information, Supplementary Planning Note, information on in- combination 
ammonia impacts, response to Ecology comments on ammonia impacts to woodlands 
and surface water contamination. Updated landscaping scheme including submission 
of Hedgerow Establishment Specification. 
 
 

       1.7 Other relevant background information 
1.6.2 The submitted Planning Statement sets out that the business is seeking to improve its 

cattle accommodation at Glan y Wern Farm through providing building environments 
that are specifically designed for the age of cattle being housed. The main aims will 
be to: 
- Improve bio-security; 
- Reduce the risk of disease transmission (both via direct contact and airborne) 

between cattle of different age groups; 
- Reduce the age range of cattle accommodated within each building, so that 

youngstock of disparate ages do not share the same airspace; 
- Optimise group sizes in accordance with current research; 
- Improve the environments within buildings; 
- Ensure the ratios of bedded areas to feed fence meet industry standards for the 

feeding systems employed; 
- Provide more loafing and bedding space per head; and 
- Facilitate the ability to improve animal husbandry and management (e.g. through 

the installation of locking head yokes in feed fences to enable efficient routine 
testing of the larger cattle for bovine TB) 

- Improvements in biosecurity, animal health, mortality rates, animal welfare, 
animal husbandry, operational efficiency and staff health & safety. 

 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2/11238 Demolition of Existing Farmhouse and erection of replacement Granted 25/05/1990 
28/11689 Erection of sheep shed Granted 21/12/1990 

Page 76



18/962/97/PF Erection of an extension to sheep shed Granted 07/01/1998 
18/2017/1225 Development of 0.09ha of land by erection of a rural enterprise dwelling, installation of 
a new septic tank Granted 14/03/2018  
18/2017/0232 Erection of stables and secure plant store, GRANTED 03/05/2017 
18/2020/0763 Prior Notification for the erection of an agricultural building for the housing of calves- 
REFUSE TO CERTIFY due to being within 400m of a protected building. 
 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
 

3.1 Local Policy/Guidance 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 

  
Policy PSE5 – Rural economy 
Policy VOE1 - Key areas of importance 
Policy VOE5 – Conservation of natural resources 
Policy VOE6 – Water management 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Conservation and Enhancement of Biodiversity  
 

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11) February 2021 
Development Control Manual November 2016 
Future Wales – The National Plan 2040 
 
Technical Advice Notes 

 
TAN 5 Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) 
TAN 6 Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (2010) 
TAN 15 Development and Flood Risk (2004) 
TAN 24 The Historic Environment (2017) 
 
 

3.3 Other material considerations 
None. 
 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Section 9.1.2 of the Development Management Manual (DMM) confirms the requirement that 
planning applications ‘must be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted 
development plan for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise'. It advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned.  
The DMM further states that material considerations can include the number, size, layout, design 
and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the 
impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (Section 9.4).  
 
The DMM has to be considered in conjunction with Planning Policy Wales, Edition 11 (February 
2021) and other relevant legislation. 
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

Page 77



4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4 Ecology 
4.1.5 Drainage (including flooding) 
4.1.6 Impact on listed building 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1 Principle 
Planning Policy Wales 11 (PPW 11) advises that Local Planning Authorities should 
adopt a constructive approach towards agricultural development proposals, especially 
those which are designed to meet the needs of changing farming practices or are 
necessary to achieve compliance with new environmental, hygiene or welfare 
legislation. In addition authorities are encouraged to adopt a positive approach to the 
conversion of rural buildings for business re-use.  
 
TAN 6 Appendix 1 sets out the general considerations for planning authorities when 
dealing with agricultural prior notification applications. TAN 6 2.1.1 states the planning 
system must also protect and enhance the natural and historic environment and 
safeguard the countryside and open spaces. 
 
Policy PSE 5 states that development, including agricultural diversification, will be 
supported throughout the County subject to detailed criteria, which include making a 
significant contribution to sustainable development and recognising any special status 
of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty/Area of Outstanding Beauty. 
 
Given the nature of the two agricultural buildings outside of the development 
boundary, the main issue is considered to be whether there is sufficient justification 
for the buildings and whether the siting and visual impact are appropriate. 

 
In terms of justification provided, the proposed development of the calf and 
youngstock buildings at Glan y Wern represents a capital investment which would 
deliver a boost to the local economy.  
 
The management and labour inputs associated with the rearing of cattle of high 
genetic and commercial value under the agreement with Genus is proposed to result 
in the need to employ three additional stockpersons at Glan y Wern who are local 
Welsh speakers. 
 
The proposed development is also proposed to have added benefits to the wider rural 
economy including:  

• Agricultural machinery manufacturers and suppliers;  
• Agricultural machinery and equipment servicing and repairs;  
• Livestock feed / supplement suppliers;  
• Straw suppliers;  
• Contractors;  
• Veterinary surgeons; etc.  

 
The application states that the link with Genus will serve to enhance the status of the 
farm business and the livestock sector generally, helping to further develop the 
reputation of Denbighshire as an internationally recognised location for excellence in 
bovine breeding and rearing. 

 
Having regard to the information provided in the submission, it is considered that the 
proposals are acceptable in principle subject to an assessment of the localised 
impacts. 

 
 

4.2.2 Visual amenity 

Page 78



The Development Management Manual advises at paragraph 9.4.3 that material 
considerations must be fairly and reasonably related to the development concerned, 
and can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the 
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the 
neighbourhood and on the environment; and the effects of a development on, for 
example, health, public safety and crime. The visual amenity and landscape impacts 
of development should therefore be regarded as a potential material consideration. 
 
TAN6 A14 states ‘The siting of a new agricultural building can have a considerable 
impact on the surrounding landscape. Developments should be assimilated into the 
landscape without compromising the functions they are intended to serve. 
New buildings should normally form part of a group rather than stand in isolation, and 
relate to existing buildings in size and colour. However, new buildings of modern 
design may sometimes best be separated from a group of traditional buildings to 
avoid visual conflict. Sites on skylines should be avoided. To reduce visual impact, 
buildings should be blended into the landscape or, on sloping sites, set into the slope 
if that can be achieved without disproportionate cost’. 
 
Representations have been received raising visual amenity concerns including the 
fact that the woodland will provide little screening in winter and the impacts on the 
views from the AONB and Offa’s Dyke Path. 
 
The siting of the proposed buildings are to be located to the south west of the existing 
livestock buildings with the attenuation pond to the north of the site on lower ground 
within a field. The buildings would be viewed in the context of an existing range of 
utilitarian farm buildings. The proposed buildings would be relatively small in terms of 
their individual and overall footprint, height and mass, particularly when considered in 
the context of the larger existing buildings to the east. The materials to be used in the 
construction of the buildings are typical of those used for modern agricultural buildings 
in rural locations and are considered to be in compliance with the guidance contained 
in TAN6 A14.  
 
The site benefits from large areas of mature woodland immediately to the north and 
south and by the existing farm buildings and rising topography to the east. With 
respect to the comments received, it is considered that long distance views of the 
buildings from public viewpoints and neighbouring properties would be limited and the 
buildings would not occupy a prominent skyline location. As the site is on land which 
is elevated above the field to the north, it is considered that the proposals could have 
an impact on the visual amenity of the area when viewed from the Public Right of 
Way to the north and it is considered reasonable to seek further landscaping details 
through the provision of supplementary hedgerow planting to the fence boundary to 
the north and south of the site to help it to blend more successfully into the 
surrounding landscape. Overall, it is not considered that the buildings when viewed 
within the context of the farm would have an unacceptable impact on visual amenity, 
more than what already exists at the site.  
 
Having regard to the design, siting, scale, massing and materials of the buildings in 
relation to the character and appearance of the locality and the wider landscape, it is 
considered that the proposals would not have an acceptable landscape and visual 
impact despite being located on the periphery of the main farm complex. 
 
 

4.2.3 Residential amenity 
The Development Management Manual advises at paragraph 9.4.3 that material 
considerations must be fairly and reasonably related to the development concerned, 
and can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the 
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the 
neighbourhood and on the environment; and the effects of a development on, for 
example, health, public safety and crime. The residential amenity impacts of 
development should therefore be regarded as a potential material consideration. 

Page 79



 
 
Policy PSE5 (i) of the LDP states appropriate employment proposals outside of 
development boundaries will be supported providing the proposal is appropriate in 
scale and nature to its location. 
 
The June 2018 Welsh Government Dear Chief Planner letter states: 
 

“Intensive agricultural units particularly pig and poultry farms, can affect both 
sensitive habitats and the local population. This is largely through the release 
of pollutants, including: ammonia; nutrients from manure, litter and slurry; 
effluent discharges; dust; odour; and noise. 

 
There is the need to exercise particular care when considering developments 
which would bring livestock units within close proximity to sensitive land uses 
such as homes, schools, hospitals, office development or sensitive 
environmental areas. Importantly, while an individual intensive livestock 
development may be acceptable, the cumulative impacts resulting from 
similar developments nearby should also be taken into account.” 

 
“While environmental permitting and local controls, such as statutory 
nuisance, may manage the ongoing effects of development, the planning 
system should consider the relationship between neighbouring and potentially 
conflicting land uses in the first instance.” 

 
It is recognised that intensive livestock units therefore have the potential to impact on 
the living conditions of residents living nearby through a number of factors, in 
particular emissions of noise, odour and dust / airborne pollution. 
 
Representations have been received raising residential amenity concerns including 
noise from the track by vehicles going over the cattle grid and odour concerns from 
the intensive rearing and field heap manure locations. 
 
The nearest non-related residential properties are Glan y Wern Cottage and Glan y 
Wern Hall located approximately 230m and 250m away respectively from the 
proposed new agricultural buildings. They are separated by an area of ancient 
woodland and open fields, see extract below (application site marked in yellow). 

 
 

Page 80



Extract of map showing distance between site and residential properties to the south 
 
Comments have been received regarding the poor efficiency of the woodland at 
screening the site from views from Glan y Wern Hall and Cottage to the south. With 
respect to comments received, a right to a view is not a material planning 
consideration. Officers consider that a 60m wide area of woodland and an additional 
200m separation distance across farmland would provide an adequate screening 
distance of the proposed sheds from the properties and are of the opinion that 
development would not have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the 
occupiers of these dwellings.  
 
The proposed buildings would be accessed via the existing track to the farm complex 
and as such it is not expected that the proposal would result in a significant increase 
in traffic movement to and from the building and therefore would not impact 
unacceptably on neighbouring property.  
 
Having regard to the odour concerns raised, it is proposed to construct an 
underground effluent tank and field heaps on the wider land approximately 300m and 
450m away from the Glan y Wern Farm complex.  
 
NRW have reviewed the information and have advised that they are satisfied with the 
details relating to pollution prevention. Officers are of the opinion that the buildings 
form part of the existing farm complex and are proposing an increase of 48 cattle on 
the farm. It is considered that the increase in numbers of animals at the farm is 
relatively small and consider that the underground effluent tank to be sufficient to deal 
with the manure and should not result in any significant increases to odour more than 
what already exist at the farm.  The proposed field heaps are considered to be of a 
suitable distance away to not raise any significant odour concerns. However, should 
odour become a nuisance to nearby properties, the Public Protection Section of the 
Council can investigate accordingly and this is covered by separate legislation to 
Planning. 
 
Having regard to the location of the proposed development, it is considered that the 
proposals would have limited impact on residential amenity. The proposals therefore 
comply with the policies and guidance listed above. 

 
 

4.2.4 Ecology 
Policy VOE 5 requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or 
designated sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests 
that permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant 
harm to such interests.  
 
This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) Section 6.4 
‘Biodiversity and Ecological Networks’, current legislation and the Conservation and 
Enhancement of Biodiversity SPG, which stress the importance of the planning 
system in meeting biodiversity objectives through promoting approaches to 
development which create new opportunities to enhance biodiversity, prevent 
biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where damage is unavoidable.  
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) sets out that “planning authorities must seek to 
maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of their functions. This means that 
development should not cause any significant loss of habitats or populations of 
species, locally or nationally and must provide a net benefit for biodiversity” (Section 
6.4.5). PPW also draws attention to the contents of Section 6 of the Environment 
(Wales) Act 2016, which sets a duty on Local Planning Authorities to demonstrate 
they have taken all reasonable steps to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the 
exercise of their functions. It is important that biodiversity and resilience 
considerations are taken into account at an early stage when considering 
development proposals (Section 6.4.4). 

Page 81



 
The Development Management Manual advises at paragraph 9.4.3 that material 
considerations must be fairly and reasonably related to the development concerned, 
and can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the 
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the 
neighbourhood and on the environment; and the effects of a development on, for 
example, health, public safety and crime. The ecological impacts of development 
should therefore be regarded as a potential material consideration. 
 
The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal submitted with the application states that there 
are no statutory protected sites within 1 kilometre of the site; the nearest SSSI is 
Llwn, located approximately 1.9 kilometres to the south west. There are however two 
non-statutory wildlife sites within 1 kilometre of the application site: Pont Clawdd-ddu 
located 623 metres away; and Garn Clwyd Bella located 865 metres away. 
 
The proposed development involves the construction of two buildings to be used for 
the accommodation of livestock and the site is located within 5 kilometres of a number 
of designated ecological sites. Accordingly, an ammonia impact assessment for the 
proposed development was conducted and demonstrated that all process 
contributions from the baseline, existing and proposed development at Glan y Wern 
are insignificant and that there is no requirement to consider further in-combination 
sources. 
 
However, NRW responded to state that the process contribution of ammonia from the 
development alone is below 1% of the critical level of ammonia contributions, and 
believed that the risk to the designated site is low. However, other sources of 
ammonia contributions could alter the findings of the report, and advised that the 
Local Planning Authority investigates if there are other sources of ammonia emissions 
to consider that could affect the sensitive sites. 
 
A screening exercise was carried out by the Local Planning Authority and potential 
sites which could provide another source of ammonia emission’s were sent to the 
agent for further assessment. The results found 1 development was relevant which 
was the free range egg production unit (24/2018/0206) in Llanynys which had an 
Ammonia Impact Assessment submitted and approved. An in-combination 
assessment was then conducted and the agent has confirmed that the in combination 
contribution with the proposed development at Glan y Wern would still be below 1% 
critical level. NRW also confirmed that they were of the opinion that risks to 
designated sites are low. 

  
  The County Ecologist initially raised concerns regarding the impacts to ancient  
  woodlands from the existing development and increasing the nitrogen levels which 
  can have an impact on specific species in the woodland. He had advised that the 
  Woodland Trust propose that all ancient woodlands should be considered in  
  assessments, but NRW are conveying the message that it’s only specific sites  
  containing specific lichens and bryophytes are susceptible. The County Ecologist is of 
  the opinion that the development will further harm those ancient woodland  
  ecosystems, but that he cannot object as NRW do not have any records of any  
  ammonia sensitive ancient woodlands close to Glan Y Wern and accordingly, there is 
  no requirement for them to be included within the Ammonia Impact Assessment. The 
  ancient woodlands around Glan y Wern are considered to be ‘restored ancient  
  woodlands’ due them having suffered such significant disturbance during past  
  afforestation that they no longer function as natural ecosystems and no ammonia 
  impact assessment is required. 

 
 
 

Page 82



 
 
Lle.gov  map of restored ancient woodlands around Glan y Wern Farm 
 

4.2.5 Drainage (including flooding) 
The Development Management Manual advises at paragraph 9.4.3 that material 
considerations must be fairly and reasonably related to the development concerned, 
and can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the 
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the 
neighbourhood and on the environment; and the effects of a development on, for 
example, health, public safety and crime. The drainage and flood risk impacts of 
development should therefore be regarded as a potential material consideration. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) Section 6.6.9 states ‘The adequacy of water supply 
and the sewage infrastructure should be fully considered when proposing 
development, both as a water service and because of the consequential 
environmental and amenity impacts associated with a lack of capacity’. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW 11) Section 6.6.22 to 6.6.29 identifies flood risk as a 
material consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 – Development and Flood 
Risk, which provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different 
sources of flooding should be assessed. TAN 15 advises that in areas which are 
defined as being of high flood hazard, development proposals should only be 
considered where: 
• new development can be justified in that location, even though it is likely to 
be at risk from flooding; and  
• the development proposal would not result in the intensification of existing 
development which may itself be at risk; and  
• new development would not increase the potential adverse impacts of a flood 
event   
 
Flood risk and contamination concerns have been raised as an objection by 
neighbours. 
 
The application site is not within an area of known flood risk according to the 
Development Advice Maps from TAN15: Development and Flood Risk, nor in the 
more up to date Flood Risk for Planning maps produced by NRW for the release of 
the new TAN 15. 
 
The proposed attenuation pond is located to the north of the site and would have a 
total depth of 1m and is proposed to have a meadow seed mixture for wetlands 
planted within it. Given the location of the attenuation pond within the field location 

Page 83



away from existing development, it is not considered that it would raise any significant 
drainage concerns as it is away from existing development and is not in an area of 
flood risk.  
 
As the new buildings would result in a surface area over 100sqm, SUDs approval is 
required from the SUDs Approval Body prior to the commencement of development. 
Officers consider that drainage concerns can be dealt with under the SUDs legislation 
during the separate SAB approval process and it would be unreasonable to condition 
this on any planning decision. It is therefore considered that, subject to the SAB 
approval being obtained, the development would not have an unacceptable impact on 
the drainage of the site. 
 
 

4.2.6 Impact on Listed Building 
Local Development Plan Policy VOE 1 seeks to protect sites of built heritage from 
development that would adversely affect them. PPW refers specifically to the need to 
ensure the character of historic buildings is safeguarded from alterations, extensions, 
or demolition that would compromise their special architectural and historic interest.; 
and indicates that where a development proposal affects a listed building or its 
setting, the primary material consideration is the statutory requirement to have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting, and any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Concerns have been raised regarding impacts to the listed buildings as a result of the 
development. 
 
There is a listed building located approximately 250m to the south of the site at Glan y 
Wern Hall.  Given the separation distances between the site including the stretch of  
existing woodland it is considered that the site would be adequately screened from 
the listed hall and would not result in any unacceptable impacts to the setting of the 
listed buildings. The Conservation Officer has also raised no objection to the 
proposals. 
 
Officers consider the proposed buildings would be seen in the context of other 
agricultural buildings on the complex and as such it would not adversely impact on the 
setting of the Listed Buildings. 
 
 
Other matters 
Well – being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the 
Council not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable 
steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being) 
objectives. The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application 
determined, how the development complies with the Act. 
 
The report on this application has taken into account the requirements of Section 3 
‘Well-being duties on public bodies’ and Section 5 ‘The Sustainable Development 
Principles’ of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The 
recommendation is made in accordance with the Act’s sustainable development 
principle through its contribution towards Welsh Governments well-being objective of 
supporting safe, cohesive and resilient communities. It is therefore considered that 
there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the achievement of well-
being objectives as a result of the proposed recommendation.  

 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The application is acceptable and is recommended to be granted. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 

Page 84



 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 9th February 
 2027 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown 

on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any 
other condition pursuant to this permission: 

 (i) Location Plan (Drawing No. H0260-05-A3-PL-01) - Received 19 May 2021 
 (ii) Existing Site/Topographical Survey Plan (Drawing No. H0260-05-A3-PL-02 Rev A) - 

Received 6 June 2021 
 (iii) Proposed Site/Block/Roof Plan (Drawing No. H0260-05-A3-PL-05 Rev A) - Received 6 

June 2021 
 (iv) Proposed Landscaping Plan (Drawing No. H0260-05-A3-PL-06) - Received 6 June 2021 
 (v) Calf Building Proposed General Arrangement and Elevations (Drawing No. H0260-05-A1-

PL-03 Rev A) - Received 6 June 2021 
 (vi) Youngstock Building Proposed General Arrangement and Elevation (Drawing No. H0260-

05-A1-PL-04) - Received 19 May 2021 
 (vii) Stock Fencing (Drawing No. H0260-05-A1-PL-07) - Received 6 June 2021 
 (viii) Planning, Design and Access Stament (Dated May 2021) - Received 19 May 2021 
 (ix) Preliminary Ecological Appraisal - Received 19 May 2021 
 (x) Drainage Strategy (Dated April 2021) - Received 19 May 2021 
 (xi) Ammonia Emissions: Impact Assessment (Dated April 2021) - Received 19 May 2021 
 (xii) Existing Site/Borehole Location(Drawing No. H0260-05-A3-PL-08 Rev A) - Received 28 

October 2021 
 (xiii) Additional information from agent in response to Ecologist - Received 18 October 
 (xiv) Additional information from agent in response to NRW - Received 28 October 2021 
 (xv) Magic Map - Recieved 28 October 2021 
 (xvi) Temporary Field Heaps Location Plan - Received 28 October 2021  
 
3. The buildings hereby approved shall not be brought into use until the proposed drainage 

systems have been installed and are operational, strictly in accordance with the approved 
Drainage Strategy (Waterco, April 2021) received 19 May 2021. 

 
4. All planting comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out no later than 

the first planting and seeding season following the commencement of development.  Any 
trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, 
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing. 

 
5. No external lighting shall be permitted to be installed or operated, including emergency / 

security lighting, until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained 
to details thereof, including a light mitigation strategy, with measures to reduce light spillage 
onto foraging habitats for bats. The scheme shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
6. Should the use of the buildings for agriculture cease, the structures shall be removed from the 

land within 6 months of the date of the cessation of the use and the land shall be restored to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
7. The buildings hereby approved shall not be brought into use until the written approval of the 

Local Planning Authority has been obtained to an Odour Management Plan. The development 
shall then be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details. 

 
 
The reasons for the conditions are:- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development. 
3. To ensure adequate drainage facilities are provided to serve the development. 

Page 85



4. In the interests of landscape and visual amenity. 
5. To ensure the favourable conservation status of protected bat species. 
6. In the interest of landscape and visual amenity. 
7. In the interests of protecting amenity of occupiers of nearby residential properties. 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



WARD : 
 

Llanrhaeadr Yng Nghinmeirch 
 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Joseph Welch (c) 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

23/2021/0927/ PR 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Details of appearance, landscaping and scale of 33 no. dwellings 
submitted in accordance with condition no. 1 of outline planning 
permission code no. 23/2016/0557 (reserved matters application) 
 

LOCATION: Land adjacent to Dolwar   Llanrhaeadr  Denbigh LL16 4NT 
 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
23/2021/0927 

 Graddfa / Scale: 1:1250

Canol / Centre: 308637, 362471 

Dyddiad / Date: 2022-01-25 17:28:40

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2021 Arolwg Ordnans 100023408 © Crown copyright and
database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100023408

 

Page 89



Page 90



View of  the site facing towards the north

P
age 91



P
age 92



View of  the site facing east

P
age 93



P
age 94



Site to the left with existing new development across 
the road

P
age 95



P
age 96



Proposed site 
plan

P
age 97



P
age 98



House types A and B

House Types A and B 
affordable dwellings

House Types C and D 
and garages

P
age 99



P
age 100



House type E and 
detached garage

House Type F

House type G and 
detached garage

P
age 101



P
age 102



House Type H- block of  
6 apartments

Street scene

P
age 103



P
age 104



 Luci Duncalf
WARD : 
 

Llanrhaeadr Yng Nghinmeirch 
 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Joseph Welch (c) 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

23/2021/0927/ PR 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Details of appearance, landscaping and scale of 33 no. dwellings 
submitted in accordance with condition no. 1 of outline planning 
permission code no. 23/2016/0557 (reserved matters application) 
 

LOCATION: Land adjacent to Dolwar   Llanrhaeadr  Denbigh LL16 4NT 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Andy Cottle 
 

CONSTRAINTS: None. 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice - Yes 
Press Notice - No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

 Recommendation to grant / approve – 4 or more objections received 
 Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 

 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

 
LLANRHAEADR YNG NGHINMEIRCH COMMUNITY COUNCIL- 
‘Objection’ on the following grounds: 

1. The Sewerage discharge will be crossing land towards the river without the permission of 
the land owner in question. 

2. The local Primary School is full to capacity and therefore the increased housing 
development would not be able to educate children locally. 

3. The trees planted at the location should be native trees only and not oriental trees as 
proposed. 

 
NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
No comments to make and do not consider that the proposed development affects a matter 
listed on our Consultation Topics, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics 
(September 2018). 
 
DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER 
No objection but provide guidance on the discharge of condition 8 of original outline planning 
permission ref.23/2016/0557 and advise that foul water should be connected to the sewer in 
the highway between specific manholes. 
 
NORTH WALES POLICE 
‘Part Q of Building Regs now requires developers to include secure doorsets and windows in 
new dwellings. This development was initially submitted before Part Q came into effect 
however it will only be exempt provided the work was started on site before 1 November 2019’. 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
- Highways Officer- 

No objection. 
 

Public Protection Officer- 

Page 105



 No comments received. 
       
         County Ecologist- 
 Informally commented that they were happy to see the bat/bird boxes on the elevations, and 
 the inclusion of a wildflower meadow on the plans, as well as some additional tree and hedge 
 planting. Suggested the inclusion of hedgehog access points in each garden and that the 
 external lighting was at 2700 kelvin rather than 3000 kelvin and details submitted regarding 
 the dimming of the lights at any point.  

 
Drainage Officer- 
SUDs SAB approval required. 
 
Strategic Housing & Policy Officer- 
Principle 
The application site is allocated for housing under policy BSC 1 in the adopted Denbighshire 
Local Development Plan and benefits from outline planning consent. The principle of residential 
development on this site is established and supported.  
 
Density 
The housing density proposed was agreed at the outline stage and is considered acceptable. 
 
Affordable housing 
The provision of 3no. 2 bedroom houses is welcomed and is appropriate to the identified 
affordable housing need in Llanrhaeadr. 
The remaining commuted sum payable is £33,084.00. 
 
Design 
Consideration of the incorporation of renewable energy generation technologies for individual 
properties would be welcomed. 
 
Open Space 
The open space provision is considered acceptable as per the outline application and section 
106 agreement. 
 
Education 
The education authority have confirmed that there is sufficient capacity in the local secondary 
schools to accommodate the proposed development and that no contribution is required. 
 
There is insufficient capacity however at the nearest primary school to accommodate the 
development and a commuted sum of £32,000 would be payable based on 33 homes and 
PLASC data Sept 2021. This is a different sum to that in the signed Section 106 agreement and 
reflects the current capacity data at the local primary school. 
 
 
RECONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
      Details of hedgehog holes, bat and bird boxes and external lighting submitted. 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
County Ecologist- 
No objection. The proposals submitted in accordance with condition 1 of outline planning 
permission code no. 23/2016/0557 (reserved matters application) demonstrate a net benefit to 
biodiversity. 

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
 

In objection 
Representations received from: 
Dykin Morgan, 7 Llys Pant y Celyn, Pentre Llanrhaeadr 
Maria & Matthew Freeman, 8 Llys Pant y Celyn, Pentre Llanrhaeadr 
Julia Upton and Alan Murray, 1 Llys Pant y Celyn, Pentre Llanrhaeadr 

Page 106



Caroline Birch, Llys Gwilym, Pentre Llanrhaeadr 
 
Summary of planning based representations in objection: 
Principle 
Village already had new houses built recently, the development would represent a 27% 
increase in number of households in the village 
Adjacent development not shown on any plans 
 
Visual Amenity 
Too much growth too quickly, losing village character. 
Impacts to open rural character of village 
Loss of agricultural land surrounding the village  
Non-native trees proposed and should be replaced with native ones 
Grass verge lost- will the landscaping scheme reinstate this? 
Density of development out of proportion with village 
Ridge heights will dwarf existing properties in the vicinity 
Use of materials out of character with the area 
Light pollution concerns 
 
Residential Amenity 
Overlooking and loss of privacy by proximity to property across the road. 
 
Highways 
Traffic concerns on already busy highway 
Additional 40-60 cars on the roads entering and existing the village 
Access close to a blind bend and could result in accidents. 
Safety concerns as road users don’t abide by speed limits. 
Extend the 30mph speed limit to account for the new development 
No safe crossing point  
 
Education 
Pressure on school places, schools already at capacity 
 
Drainage and flooding 
Concerns over flooding issues in this area 
Unclear where foul connections points will be and proposal involves crossing land where an 
agreement has not been met 
 
Welsh Language 
Impacts to Welsh Language 
 
Noise 
Concerns over increased traffic noise  
 
Ecology 
Damage to existing trees on adjacent land to install drainage 
 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 18/11/2021 
 
EXTENSION OF TIME AGREED? Yes, 14/01/2021 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

 delay in receipt of key consultation response(s) 
 additional information required from applicant 
 protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans 
 re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional 

information 
 awaiting consideration by Committee 

 

Page 107



 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 This is a reserved matters application seeking approval of details of appearance, 

landscaping and scale of 33 no. dwellings submitted in accordance with Condition 1 
of outline planning permission ref 23/2016/0557 on land adjacent to Dolwar, 
Llanrhaeadr.  
 

1.1.2 Outline planning permission was granted at Planning Committee on 4th August 2020 
for the development of 1.2 hectares of land by the erection of 33 dwellings including 
access and layout.  The application was made in outline with all other matters 
reserved. 
 

1.1.3 The layout was approved at outline stage and is based around the spine road with the 
public open space proposed on the eastern side of the site. 
 

1.1.4 The plans show 33 dwellings arranged at various angles to one another relative to the 
access road and A525. The documents indicate there would be 6 different house 
types to include:  

 1 terrace of 3 affordable dwellings- house type Aa and Bb- 2 beds 
 1 terrace of 3 dwellings- House type A and B- 3 beds 
 7 pairs of semi-detached dwellings- 3 beds 
 7 detached dwellings – House type C and D and F - 3 and 4 beds 
 1 block of 6 apartments - 2 beds 

 
The housing mix on the site is: 

 

No. beds  Mix on the site  Recommended mix 

1‐2 bed  27 %  30% 

3 bed  52%  35% 

4 bed +   21%  35% 

  100%  100% 

 

House types A and B 

 
House type A – 3 beds x 2  

House type B‐ 3 beds x 1  

Materials: Terca Kassandra red brick, slate roof 

GIA: 92sqm 

Height: 7.8m 

 

Page 108



 

House type Aa and Bb‐ Affordable dwellings 

 
House type Aa – 2 bed affordable x 2  

House type Bb‐ 2 bed affordable‐ x 1 

Materials: Terca Kassandra red brick, slate roof 

GIA: 92sqm 

Height: 7.8m 

 

House Type C and D 

         
House type C (left) ‐ 3 beds x 6  

House type D (right)‐ 3 beds x 6 

Material: Render and sandstone, slate roof 

GIA: 92sqm 

Height: 7.8m 

Shared double garage: Height 4.8m, GIA 15sqm‐  Render, slate roof 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 109



 

House Type E 

      
House type E‐ 4 beds x 5 

Materials: Render and sandstone, slate roof. 

GIA: 120sqm 

Height: 7.6m 

Garage: Height 3.9m, GIA 18sqm‐  Render, slate roof 

 

House Type F 

 

House type F ‐ 3 beds x 2 

Materials: Render and sandstone, slate roof 

GIA: 88sqm 

Height: 7.8m 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 110



House Type G 

     

House type G‐ 4 beds x 2  

Materials: Red brick Terca Kassandra brick, slate roof 

GIA: 155sqm 

Height: 7.7m 

Garage: Height 3.9m, GIA 18 sqm‐  Red brick Terca Kassandra brick, slate roof 

 

 

House Type H 

 
House type H‐ 6 x 2 bed apartments  

Materials: Terca Kassandra Red brick, slate roof 

GIA: 49sqm 

Height: 7.7m 

 
 

1.1.5 The main access to the site would be from A525 and has already been agreed at 
outline stage. No other public vehicular accesses are proposed. An agricultural 
access would be retained on the north eastern side to the adjacent farmland.  
 

1.1.6 Surface water drainage is proposed to be dealt with within the site utilising 
‘infiltration’/soak away methods. Foul drainage is to be dealt with via connection to the 
mains sewer system. 
 

1.1.7 The design of the dwellings incorporates red brick to the larger terraced dwellings and 
the block of apartments to the far corners of the site and a mix of different designs 
incorporating sandstone front gables and sandstone plinths, render walls and natural 
slate roofs.  

Page 111



1.1.8 A shared double detached garage is proposed between plots 31 and 32, single 
detached garages are proposed to serve dwellings on plots 33, 23, 24,25, 28 and 29.  
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The site is located on the southern fringe of Llanrhaeadr. It is bound to the north by 

the dwelling Dolwar. To the west is the A525. To the east and south of the site are 
open fields. To the west is a new residential development of 15 dwellings finished in 
yellow brick. 
 

1.2.2 The site boundaries are predominantly defined by estate-type railings and hedges. 
The land is relatively level.   
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is allocated for housing development in the adopted Local Development Plan 

under Policy BSC1. The site is also within the development boundary of Pentre 
Llanrhaeadr. 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 Outline planning permission was granted at Planning Committee and the decision 

was released on 4th August 2020 for the development of 1.2 hectares of land by the 
erection of 33 dwellings including access and layout. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 Submission of original documents submitted with the outline application, including the 

Design and Access Statement, Ecology Report and details regarding the July 2020 
s106 agreement.  
 

1.5.2 Revised plans incorporating design amendments to house type C and material 
amendments to house type F (including renaming from house type D) and revised 
floor plan details of the 2 bed affordable dwellings within the Aa and Bb housing type. 
 

1.5.3 Revised plans incorporating the Ecologist’s comments regarding bat and bird boxes, 
hedgehog holes and the external lighting scheme. 
 

1.5.4 Updated boundary plan incorporating black estate style fencing to the roadside 
boundary. 
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 There is an existing Section 106 Agreement in place at the site which was secured 

following the grant of Outline Planning Permission in 2020 which secured specific 
commuted sums for open space, affordable housing and education contributions 
which were relevant to the situation at the time of making the Agreement. 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 23/2016/0557 Development of 1.2 hectares of land by the erection of 33 no. dwellings (outline 

application including access and layout), GRANTED at planning committee on 4/08/2020 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

 
 Local Policy/Guidance 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy RD5 – The Welsh language and the social and cultural fabric of communities 
Policy BSC1 – Growth Strategy for Denbighshire 
Policy BSC3 – Securing infrastructure contributions from Development 
Policy BSC4 – Affordable Housing 
Policy BSC11 – Recreation and open space 
Policy VOE5 – Conservation of natural resources 

Page 112



Policy VOE6 – Water management 
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Affordable Housing  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Conservation and Enhancement of Biodiversity  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Parking Requirements In New Developments 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Recreational Public Open Space  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Development  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Development Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Space Standards  
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Trees & Landscaping 

 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11) February 2021 
Future Wales – The National Plan 2040 
Development Control Manual November 2016 
Technical Advice Notes 
 
TAN 12: Design 
TAN 18: Transport 

 
4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Section 9.1.2 of the Development Management Manual (DMM) confirms the requirement that 
planning applications ‘must be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted 
development plan for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise'. It advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned.  

The DMM further states that material considerations can include the number, size, layout, design 
and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the 
impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (Section 9.4).  
 
The DMM has to be considered in conjunction with Planning Policy Wales, Edition 11 (February 
2021) and other relevant legislation. 
 
Denbighshire County Council declared a climate change and ecological emergency in July 2019. 
In October 2020 the Council approved an amendment of its Constitution so that all decisions of 
the Council now have regard to tackling climate and ecological change as well as having regard 
to the sustainable development principles and the well-being of future generations.  
 
The Council aims to become a Net Carbon Zero Council and an Ecologically Positive Council by 
31 March 2030. Its goal and priorities are set out in its Climate and Ecological Change Strategy 
2021/22 to 2029/30. The actions, projects and priorities in the Strategy directly relate to council 
owned and controlled assets and services. One priority of the Strategy is to promote the existing 
policies within the Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006 to 2021 and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (SPG) which contribute to environmentally responsible development. In preparing these 
reports to determine planning applications we therefore highlight the LDP 2006 to 2021 and 
appropriate SPG. Applications that are determined in accordance with the LDP 2006 to 2021 are 
environmentally responsible developments.  
 
Planning applications are assessed in accordance with statutory requirements including The 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016, national policy (Future Wales, PPW 11) and local policy (LDP 
2006 to 2021) and therefore they are assessed with regard to tackling climate and ecological 
change which is a material consideration. 
 

Page 113



The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to all statutory requirements, 
policies and material planning considerations which are considered to be of relevance to the 
proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Appearance 
4.1.3 Landscaping 
4.1.4 Scale 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1 Principle 
The main Local Development Plan Policy relevant to the principle of the development 
is Policy BSC 1. This policy seeks to make provision for new housing in a range of 
locations, concentrating development within development boundaries of cities, towns 
and villages, and it states developers will be expected to provide a range of house 
sizes, types and tenure. 
 
The application site is within the development boundary of Pentre Llanrhaeadr and is 
allocated for housing under Policy BSC 1 in the adopted Denbighshire Local 
Development Plan and benefits from outline planning consent. The principle of 
residential development on this site is established through the grant of outline 
permission, and is not for deliberation at  this stage, it is only the details of the 
reserved matters that are to be considered in relation to this application. 
 
 

4.2.2 Appearance 
  “Appearance” means the aspects of a building or place within the development which 
  determine the visual impression the building or place makes, including the external 
  built form of the development, its architecture, materials, decoration, lighting, colour 
  and texture. 
   

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
  
Concerns have been raised locally in respect of the visual impact of the proposal 
which include comments around the impact to the rural character of the village, the 
density of development being out of proportion with the village, concerns over the 
ridge heights and the use of materials not being in keeping with the character of the 
area. 
 
Having regard to the comments received, the density of the development has already 
been agreed at outline stage and the layout and number of dwellings has been 
approved. 
  
In terms of design detailing for the new dwellings, the proposals involves a mix of both 
red brick dwellings and render and sandstone dwellings, all with slate roofs. The red 
brick dwellings are typically the larger house sizes, the terraces and block of 
apartments located to each end of the site along the trunk road. The design includes 
sills to the bottom of the windows and detailing within the gables. The render and 
sandstone dwellings include 3 different designs, all with a sandstone plinth and some 
with front sandstone gables (house types D and E). 
 

Page 114



The appearance of the dwelling mixes traditional with some modern elements. The 
windows are mainly traditional sized windows and the patio doors to the rear provide 
a contemporary feel and function. The front gables over the windows of house types 
A, Aa, B, Bb and C are common throughout the development and provide common 
design link across the estate.  
 
The height of the proposed dwellings has been raised as a concern with the proposed 
dwellings not being in keeping with the surrounding development. The surrounding 
development is mixed with some traditional bungalow development fronting on the 
main road finished in render and sandstone and directly opposite with more modern 
larger dwellings finished in yellow brick set back off the road. The large dwelling, 
Dolwar is located to the north of the site and is a prominent red brick dwelling on 
approach to the centre of the village. The proposal includes red brick dwellings closer 
to the Dolwar end of the site which is considered to tie into the existing development 
in the area. The proposed semi-detached dwellings finished in render and sandstone 
located opposite the new development is not considered to conflict with the colours 
and textures of the external materials of this development and would fit in well and 
complement the existing streetscene.  
 
With respect to the comments received in objection, having regard to the design and 
materials of the dwellings in the vicinity, Officers consider the appearance and details  
proposed in relation to the dwellings is considered to be acceptable and in keeping 
with surrounding development. 
 
It is considered that the appearance of the development would be respectful of the 
 location. 
 
 

4.2.3 Landscaping 
  “Landscaping” in relation to a site or any part of a site for which outline planning  
  permission has been granted to, as the case may be, in respect of which an  
  application for such permission has been made, means the treatment of land (other 
  than buildings) for the purpose of enhancing or protecting the amenities of the site 
  and the area in which it is situated and includes: 
  (a) screening by fences, walls or other means; 
  (b) the planting of trees hedges, shrubs or grass; 
  (c) the formation of banks, terraces or other earthworks; 
  (d) the layout out or provision of gardens, courts, squares, water features, sculpture 
  or public art; and 
  (e)the provision of other amenity features. 
   

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
 
Concerns have been raised specifically in relation to landscaping issues including the 
proposed non-native trees which should be replaced with native ones and the loss of 
the grass verge. 
 
The proposed landscaping scheme has been considered by the County Ecologist 
who was satisfied with the inclusion of a wildflower meadow within the public open 
space area as well as some additional hedge and tree planting throughout the site. 
The scheme includes a beech hedge to the front boundary and a box leaved holly 
hedge to the property boundaries which front the internal estate road. These are 

Page 115



considered to be acceptable and would help to soften the development within the 
landscape and improve the appearance of the site when viewed from the public road. 
A number of trees are proposed to the front boundary including pear and Amelanchier 
‘Robin Hill’ and Rowan and maple trees are proposed to be dotted within the flower 
bed boundary to the area of open space. Hornbeam trees and other lower level 
dense shrubs are proposed throughout the estate. The grass verge to the front of the 
development is proposed to be retained and improved with a footway within the 
estate bound by a black estate style fence. 
 
In terms of boundary treatments, it is considered that the incorporation of a black 
estate fence to the front boundary would help to remember the site’s former 
agricultural use and would provide a nod to the former metal agricultural fence which 
curved around the site boundaries on approach into the village. The proposed close 
boarded fences are considered to be reasonable to ensure the privacy of the rear 
gardens is retained and the post and rail fencing to the west boundary is acceptable 
and would not impact unacceptably on the character of the area. 
 
In relation to soft landscaping, detailed proposals have been provided for each plot 
and the spaces around the properties with planting specifications with numbers, size 
and type detailed on the landscaping plan.  
 
All hard and soft landscaping details proposed are considered acceptable and 
appropriate for the area to soften the visual appearance of the development, to 
protect the amenities of exisitng residents and would provide a sufficient level of 
amenity for future occuipers of the dwellings proposed. 

 
 It is therefore considered that the landscaping of the development would be respectful 
 of the location. 
 
 

4.2.4 Scale 
“Scale” means the height, width and length of each building proposed within the 
development in relation to its surroundings. 
 
 Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
 
 Concerns have been raised locally in respect of the height of the dwellings not being 
in keeping with the surrounding development in the area. 
 
In relation to surrounding development, overall it is considered that the submitted 
detail demonstrates an acceptable scale of development which in Officers’ view is in 
keeping with the area. 
   
 With respect to the concerns raised, it is Officers opinion that whilst the erection of 
dwellings will clearly have a visual impact given the site is currently an undeveloped 
field, it is not concluded this would result in an unacceptable impact on the character 
of the area given the recently completed development on the opposite side of the 
road and the site being a logical extension to the village boundaries.  
 
It is therefore considered that the scale of the development would be respectful of the 
location. 
 

Page 116



 
Other matters 
 
Drainage 
The agent has confirmed that an agreement in principle is in place to cross land not 
within our clients ownership for the foul water connection, this agreement won’t be 
finalised until planning is secured as with all developments of this nature. All 
necessary Legal agreements in terms of Welsh Water S104 Foul water connections 
are in progress. It is further noted that the drainage arrangements are to be agreed as 
part of a condition imposed on the associated outline consent. If this reserved matters 
application were granted consent, it would not convey any consent as to the drainage 
arrangements for the site.  
 
Contributions 
Amendments are required through a Deed of Variation to the existing Section 106 
agreement in line with the advice provided by the Strategic Planning and Housing 
Officer in respect to affordable housing and education contributions.  
 
Affordable Housing: 
The variation in affordable housing contribution figures is due to changes in the Gross 
Internal Area of the proposed dwellings and associated build costs. 
 
Education: 
The variation in education figures is due to changes in role numbers and the fact they 
are looking at refurbishment and remodelling rather than an extension so the figures 
are lower. 
 
 
 
Well – being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the 
Council not only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable 
steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being) 
objectives. The Act sets a requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application 
determined, how the development complies with the Act. 
 
The report on this application has taken into account the requirements of Section 3 
‘Well-being duties on public bodies’ and Section 5 ‘The Sustainable Development 
Principles’ of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The 
recommendation is made in accordance with the Act’s sustainable development 
principle through its contribution towards Welsh Governments well-being objective of 
supporting safe, cohesive and resilient communities. It is therefore considered that 
there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the achievement of well-
being objectives as a result of the proposed recommendation.  
 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The detailing of the dwellings including appearance, scale and the landscaping arrangements 

are considered acceptable and merit support.  

5.2 There is an existing Section 106 Agreement in place at the site which was secured following 
the grant of Outline Planning Permission in 2020 which secured specific commuted sums for 
open space, affordable housing and education contributions which were relevant to the 
situation at the time of making the Agreement. Having regard to the advice provided by the 
Strategic Planning and Housing Officers, amendments to the final affordable housing and 
education contributions are required through a Deed of Variation to the existing Agreement. 

5.3 It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions and an updated Section 106 Agreement is secured with the Local Authority around 

Page 117



the revised sums payable towards affordable housing (£33,084.00) and education 
contributions (£32,000). 

5.4 The sums should be paid prior to the occupation of the first dwelling. The planning permission 
would only be released upon completion of the updated Section 106 Agreement through a 
Deed of Variation. Failure to update and complete the Agreement within 12 months of the 
date of the Committee meeting would oblige the application to be reported back to Committee 
and reconsidered against policies and guidance in place at that time. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE- subject to the following conditions:- 

 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown 

on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any 
other condition pursuant to this approval: 

 (i) House Type A and B (Drawing No. C102/010 Rev. C) received 9 November 2021 
 (ii) House Type C and D (Drawing No. C102/011 Rev. E) received 21 December 2021 
 (iii) House Type F (Drawing No. C102/012 Rev F) received 21 December 2021 
 (iv) House Type E (Drawing No. C102/013 Rev. C) received 9 November 2021 
 (v) House Type G (Drawing No. C102/014 Rev. C) received 9 November 2021 
 (vi) House Type H (Drawing No. C102/015 Rev. B) received 9 November 2021 
 (vii) Shared double garage (Drawing No. C102/021 Rev. B) received 9 November 2021 
 (viii) House Type G Garage (Drawing No. C102/019 Rev. B) received 9 November 2021 
 (ix) House Type C and E Single Garage (Drawing No. C102/020 Rev. B) received 9 

November 2021 
 (x) Soft landscape design (Drawing No. 583-STO-00-00-DR-L-0001 P01) received 21 

December 2021 
 (xi) Soft landscape details (Drawing No. 583-STO-00-00-DR-L-0002 P00) received 8 

September 2021 
 (xii) Boundary design (Drawing No. 583-STO-00-00-DR-L-0003 P03) received 21 December 

2021 
 (xiii) Proposed Site Plan (Drawing No. C102/017 Rev. F) received 21 December 2021 
 (xiv) Location plan (Drawing No. C102/022 Rev. D) received 21 December 2021 
 (xv) Employment Strategy received 8 September 2021 
 (xvi) Lighting Layout Plan received 26 November 2021 
 (xvii) Lighting Report received 26 November 2021 
 (xviii) House Type Aa and Bb (Drawing No. C102/024) received 9 November 2021 
 (xix) Street Scene (Drawing No. C102/023 Rev A) received 21 December 2021 
 (xx) Design and Access Statement Addendum received 9 November 2021 
 (xxi) Ecological Assessment (Clwydian Ecology, 15/07/2016) received 22 November 2021 
 
 
 Highways and drainage 
 (i) Construction Method Statement received 8 September 2021 
 (ii) Drainage Layout (Drawing No. 7287 / 01 Rev. A) received 8 September 2021 
 (iii) Highway Setting Out (Drawing No. 7287/02 Rev. A) received 8 September 2021 
 (iv)  Proposed Highway Layout (Drawing No. 7287/03 Rev. A) received 8 September 2021 
 (v) Highway and Drainage longsections (Drawing No. 7287/04 Rev. A) received 8 September 

2021 
 (vi) Highway Construction Details (Drawing No. 7287/05 Rev. A) received 8 September 2021 
 (vii) Section 38 and 278 Agreement Plan (Drawing No. 7287/06 Rev. A) received 8 

September 2021 
 (vii) External Works Layout (Drawing No. 7287/07 Rev. A) received 8 September 2021 
 (viii) Manhole Schedules (Drawing No. 7287/08-1 Rev. A) received 8 September 2021 
 (ix) Manhole Schedules (Drawing No. 7287/08-2) received 8 September 2021 
 (x) Drainage Construction Details Sheet 1 of 2 (Drawing No. 7287/09-1) received 8 

September 2021 

Page 118



 (xi) Drainage Construction Details Sheet 2 of 2 (Drawing No. 7287/09-2) received 8 
September 2021 

 (xii) Surface Water Catchment Areas (Drawing No. 7287/10-A) received 8 September 2021 
 (xiii) Surface Water SABS Layout (Drawing No. 7287/11-A) received 8 September 2021 
 (xiv) Surface Water SABS Details (Drawing No. 7287/12) received 8 September 2021 
 (xv) Manhole Connection Plan (Drawing No. 7287/13) received 8 September 2021 
 
2. No development shall be permitted to commence on the external faces of the walls or roofs of 

any buildings until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to 
the details of all the materials and finishes it is proposed to use thereon, including, where 
relevant, the texture, type and colour of the finish. The development shall be undertaken 
strictly in accordance with the details approved under this condition. 

 
3. No development shall be permitted to commence on the pathways, driveways and parking 

areas until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to the 
details of all the materials it is proposed to use thereon, including, where relevant, the texture, 
type and colour of the finish. The development shall be undertaken strictly in accordance with 
the details approved under this condition. 

 
4. The development shall proceed in strict accordance with the Soft Landscaping Design 

scheme hereby approved (received 21 December 2021) which shall be implemented within 
the first available planting and seeding season following the commencement of development. 
Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development 
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing. 

 
5. All trees and hedges to be retained as part of the development hereby permitted shall be 

protected during site clearance and construction work by 1 metre high fencing erected 1 
metre outside the outermost limits of the branch spread, or in accordance with an alternative 
scheme agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority;  no construction materials or 
articles of any description shall be burnt or placed on the ground that lies between a tree trunk 
or hedgerow and such fencing, nor within these areas shall the existing ground level be raised 
or lowered, or any trenches or pipe runs excavated, without prior written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
6. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the 

mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures set out in the Ecological Assessment 
(Clwydian Ecology, 15/07/2016) received 22 November 2021 and as detailed on the approved 
elevational plans in respect of the provision of bat and bird boxes and included on the 
Boundary Design Plan (Drawing No. P03) received 21 December 2021 in respect of 
hedgehog holes within the close board fencing.  

 
7. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the external 
 Lighting Layout Plan and Outdoor Lighting Report (received 26 November 2021). 
 
8. Notwithstanding the hereby approved plans, the visibility splays for the access into the site 
 shall at all times be kept free of any planting, tree or shrub growth, or any other obstruction in 
 excess of 1.05 m in height above the level of the adjoining carriageway. 
 
9. Notwithstanding the submitted plans, this consent does not convey any permission as to the 
 detailing of the foul water drainage. 
 
 
The reasons for the conditions are:- 
 
1. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development. 
2. In the interests of visual amenity. 
3. In the interests of visual amenity. 
4. In the interests of ecology and visual amenity. 
5. In the interests of ecology and visual amenity. 

Page 119



6. In the interests of ecology. 
7. To protect the favourable conservation status of protected bat species. 
8. To ensure that adequate visibility is provided at the proposed point of access to the highway. 
9. In the interest of clarity to ensure the foul water drainage system is appropriately assessed 
 prior to work commencing. 
 
 

Page 120



WARD : 
 

Tremeirchion 
 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Christine Marston (c) 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

41/2021/1199/ PC 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of a garden implement store (retrospective application) 

LOCATION: Bryn Ffynnon, Bodfari, Denbigh 
 

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 
41/2021/1199 

 Graddfa / Scale: 1:1250

Canol / Centre: 309585, 371581 

Dyddiad / Date: 2022-01-25 17:52:43

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2021 Arolwg Ordnans 100023408 © Crown copyright and
database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100023408

 

Page 123



Page 124



Proposed plans

P
age 125



P
age 126



P
age 127



P
age 128



P
age 129



P
age 130



P
age 131



P
age 132



P
age 133



P
age 134



Proximity to neighbouring dwellings

P
age 135



P
age 136



View towards dwelling to the south-west

P
age 137



P
age 138



View towards dwelling to the north-west

P
age 139



P
age 140



 Denise Shaw
WARD : 
 

Tremeirchion 
 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Christine Marston (c) 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

41/2021/1199/ PC 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of a garden implement store (retrospective application) 

LOCATION: Bryn Ffynnon, Bodfari, Denbigh 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs A J Emslie 
 

CONSTRAINTS: AONB 
  

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice - No 
Press Notice - No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

 Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

BODFARI COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
The Council objected to this application on the grounds that: 
a) It significantly overlooked neighbouring properties 
b) It would contribute greatly to light pollution in are a factor that is at variance with the AONB 
supplementary guidance on dark skies that DCC has adopted. 
 
CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY 
JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
“The Joint Committee deplores the retrospective nature of this application but has no objection 
in principle to the proposals. The specification of natural slate roof and timber clad walls is 
appropriate to the rural setting. The committee favours a naturally weathered finish for the 
timber cladding to better integrate the development into the rural scene. The intention to plant 
new native hedge boundaries to supplement the existing post and wire boundary fences is 
supported, but further details are required of the extent and specification of the proposed 
hedges. The committee would also recommend that selected locally native hedgerow trees are 
also planted as part of the landscaping scheme. No details of existing or proposed external 
lighting are shown but the committee would recommend that a condition be attached to any 
permission requiring further details of any proposed lighting to ensure it is designed and 
specified to conserve the AONB’s dark sky and nocturnal wildlife.” 

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 

 
In objection 
Representations received from: 
 
Heather and Martin Eubank, Treehouse Cottage, Bodfari   
Mr & Mrs Moorhouse, The Old Chapel, Sodom, Bodfari 
 
Summary of planning based representations in objection: 
 
Visual amenity: 

 Outbuilding is of considerable size and in view of the time it takes to screen with 
landscaping, wonder if this is an option as a light now shines from the side of the house 
to the newly developed area. 

Page 141



 Concerns also raised about the impact of the replacement dwelling built at the site 
(subject of previous consent). 

 Consider site has been overdeveloped and trees have been removed not replaced. 
 Note that the landscaping scheme approved as part of previous replacement dwelling 

consent has not been implemented / completed in accordance with approved plans. 
This needs to be completed and feel current application should be conditioned to 
ensure previous landscaping scheme is carried out. 

 
Residential amenity: 

 Concerns regarding impact on neighbouring dwellings to the west of the site in terms of 
privacy, noise and light pollution. 

 The Garden Implement Store is visible from the rear of dwellings to the west. Consider 
landscaping is needed to provide screening to help with privacy, and to minimise noise 
and light pollution. 

 Need to control external lighting to avoid light pollution. 
 Feel more information is needed on the garden implements being stored to ensure it 

doesn’t cause noise pollution. 
 
Re-consultation response: 

 Note the additional landscaping proposed, but concerns raised regarding when it will be 
carried out and where it is sited - proposed location of the additional native hedging is 
considerably lower (downhill) from where the store has been built, and won’t provide 
screening of the store from neighbouring properties, and will fail to maximise privacy 
and minimise noise and light pollution from the store. Screen planting should be 
alongside the store building at the same level. The revised proposed plan therefore 
does not address neighbour concerns. 

 
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   20/01/2022 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

 awaiting consideration by Committee 
 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The proposal is for the retention of a garden store building which has been built within 

the curtilage of Bryn Ffynnon residential dwelling. 
 

1.1.2 The garden store building is 7.8m long by 5.3m wide. Walls are timber and the 
pitched roof is finished in slate tiles. The pitch height is 3.9m. 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The site lies within the residential curtilage of Bryn Ffynnon, which is a new build two 

storey dwelling situated in an open countryside location, approximately 1.4km to the 
north-east of Bodfari village centre. 
 

1.2.2 The closest neighbouring dwellings are Treehouse Cottage, approximately 75m to the 
south-west and The Old Chapel, approximately 110m to the north-west from the site 
of the garden store building, which are at a lower ground level to the application site. 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 Outside of development boundaries and within the AONB. 

 
1.4 Relevant planning history 

1.4.1 Planning permission granted in 2014 for a replacement dwelling at the application 
site. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 Amended plans submitted to include additional planting to the west of the site. 

 

Page 142



1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 Subject to controls on size and siting, outbuildings can be built within the curtilage of a 

dwelling under permitted development rights. Officers would note that permitted 
development rights have not been removed, however the building is more than 20m 
from the dwelling and therefore requires planning permission. 
 

1.6.2 Officers would also stress that the grant of planning permission for ancillary buildings 
within the residential curtilage does not override the need to comply with conditions 
imposed on the planning permission for the replacement dwelling. 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 41/2014/1215. Demolition of existing dwelling and outbuildings and erection of replacement 

dwelling and ancillary works. Granted 30/12/2014. 
 

2.2 41/2015/0195. Details of landscaping submitted in accordance with condition number 2 of 
planning permission 41/2014/1215 (approval of condition application) Approved 25/02/2015. 

 
2.3 41/2015/0728. Re-siting of replacement dwelling submitted in relation to application Code No. 

41/2014/1215/PF (non-material amendment). Approved 17/08/2015. 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
 

Local Policy/Guidance 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD3 – Extensions and alterations to existing dwellings 
Policy VOE2 – Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Area of Outstanding Beauty  
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note: Residential Development 
 
 Government Policy / Guidance 
 Planning Policy Wales Edition 11 February 2021 
 Development Control Manual (2016) 
 Future Wales – The National Plan 2040 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Section 9.1.2 of the Development Management Manual (DMM) confirms the requirement that 
planning applications ‘must be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted 
development plan for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise'. It advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned.  
 
The DMM further states that material considerations can include the number, size, layout, design 
and appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the 
impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (Section 9.4).  
 
The DMM has to be considered in conjunction with Planning Policy Wales, Edition 11 (February 
2021) and other relevant legislation. 
 
Denbighshire County Council declared a climate change and ecological emergency in July 2019. 
In October 2020 the Council approved an amendment of its Constitution so that all decisions of 
the Council now have regard to tackling climate and ecological change as well as having regard 
to the sustainable development principles and the well-being of future generations.  
 

Page 143



The Council aims to become a Net Carbon Zero Council and an Ecologically Positive Council by 
31 March 2030. Its goal and priorities are set out in its Climate and Ecological Change Strategy 
2021/22 to 2029/30. The actions, projects and priorities in the Strategy directly relate to council 
owned and controlled assets and services. One priority of the Strategy is to promote the existing 
policies within the Local Development Plan (LDP) 2006 to 2021 and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (SPG) which contribute to environmentally responsible development. In preparing these 
reports to determine planning applications we therefore highlight the LDP 2006 to 2021 and 
appropriate SPG. Applications that are determined in accordance with the LDP 2006 to 2021 are 
environmentally responsible developments.  
 
Planning applications are assessed in accordance with statutory requirements including The 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016, national policy (Future Wales, PPW 11) and local policy (LDP 
2006 to 2021) and therefore they are assessed with regard to tackling climate and ecological 
change which is a material consideration. 
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to all statutory requirements, 
policies and material planning considerations which are considered to be of relevance to the 
proposal. 

 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity / character of the AONB 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 

 
Other matters 
 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 
4.2.1 Principle 

Policy RD 3 relates specifically to the extension and alteration of existing dwellings, 
and states that these will be supported subject to compliance with detailed criteria. 
  
The Residential Development SPG offers basic advice on the principles to be 
adopted when designing domestic extensions and related developments, including 
domestic outbuildings within the residential curtilage. 
  
The principle of appropriate outbuildings within the residential curtilage is therefore 
acceptable. The assessment of the specific impacts of the development proposed is 
set out in the following sections. 

 
 

4.2.2 Visual Amenity / Character of the AONB 
Criteria i) of Policy RD 3 requires the scale and form of the proposed extension or 
alteration to be subordinate to the original dwelling, or the dwelling as it was 20 years 
before the planning application is made.  
Criteria ii) of Policy RD 3 requires that a proposal is sympathetic in design, scale, 
massing and materials to the character and appearance of the existing building.  
Criteria iii) of Policy RD3 requires that a proposal does not represent an 
overdevelopment of the site. 
 
Policy VOE2 seeks to prevent development that would harm the character and 
appearance of the AONB. 

 
Representations on the visual amenity impacts have been made by the Community 
Council and members of the public. The AONB Advisory Committee have raised no 
objection, subject to conditions to control landscaping and external lighting. 
 
The proposal is for a timber storage shed within the residential curtilage of a recently 
constructed replacement dwelling. 
 

Page 144



Amended plans have been submitted which include additional planting along a 
boundary outside of the residential curtilage, but within the applicant’s control on 
grounds of visual and residential amenity. 
 
Comments have also be made in relation to compliance with the approved 
landscaping scheme for the replacement dwelling at the site.  
 
Officers would note the conditions imposed on the replacement dwelling permission, 
including the scheme of landscaping, need to be complied with, and the grant of 
consent for the storage building subject of the application does not alter this. 
 
Officers also note that the landscaping proposals should only relate to the impact of 
the scheme subject of the planning application, and conditions cannot be imposed to 
require landscaping measures to rectify impacts outside of the scope of the planning 
application. 
 
Officers consider the materials using in the garden store building to be sympathetic to 
the setting within the AONB. The scale of the building is clearly subordinate to the 
main dwelling, and the siting is also considered to be well related to the main 
dwelling. 
 
The planting proposed is also considered to be proportionate to the scale of the 
development, and would help to screen views of the building from the west. 
 
Officers do not therefore consider it reasonable to condition additional landscaping 
over and above what is shown on the approved plans, and would note that the 
landscaping scheme subject of the replacement dwelling permission would still need 
to be complied with. 
 
No details of lighting are shown on the plans, however owing to the siting within the 
AONB, conditions are considered necessary to control external lighting. 
 
Therefore, having regard to the design, siting, scale, massing and materials of the 
proposed garden store building, in relation to the character and appearance the 
locality and landscape, subject to the imposition of conditions, it is considered the 
proposals would not have an unacceptable impact on visual amenity and would 
therefore be in general compliance with the tests in the policies referred to. 

 
 

4.2.3 Residential Amenity 
Criteria iii) of Policy RD 3 requires that a proposal does not represent an 
overdevelopment of the site.  

 
The Residential Development SPG states that no more than 75% of a residential 
property should be covered by buildings.  
 
The Residential Space Standards SPG specifies that 40m2 of private external amenity 
space should be provided as a minimum standard for residential dwellings. 
 
Representations on the residential amenity impacts have been made by the 
Community Council and members of the public. 
 
The proposal is for a garden store within the residential curtilage. 
 
Officers would note that the nearest unrelated dwelling is over 75m from the 
application site. Whilst residential properties to the west are at a lower ground level, 
owing to topography and intervening vegetation, views towards the neighbouring 
properties from the site are very limited. 
 

Page 145



From officer observations at the site visit, from a vantage point close to the store 
building, only roof pitches of Tree House Cottage and The Old Chapel to the west 
could been seen from the site. Windows and residential gardens could not been 
seen. 
 
Whilst neighbours may have concerns regarding views towards their property from 
the recently built replacement dwelling or from other sections of the site, Officers 
would stress the assessment of impact on residential amenity needs to be focussed 
on the development which is subject of the current application. 
 
Owing to the scale and siting of the proposed garden store, the separation distances 
between the site and dwellings to the west, and intervening topography and 
vegetation, Officers do not consider the proposal would adversely impact on 
residential amenity of residential neighbours. 

 
Having regard to the scale, location and design of the proposed development, it is 
considered that the proposals would not have an unacceptable impact on residential 
amenity, and would therefore be in general compliance with the tests of the policies 
referred to. 
 
 

Other matters 
Well – being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on the Council not 
only to carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable steps in exercising its 
functions to meet its sustainable development (or well-being) objectives. The Act sets a 
requirement to demonstrate in relation to each application determined, how the development 
complies with the Act. 
 
The report on this application has taken into account the requirements of Section 3 ‘Well-
being duties on public bodies’ and Section 5 ‘The Sustainable Development Principles’ of the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The recommendation is made in 
accordance with the Act’s sustainable development principle through its contribution towards 
Welsh Governments well-being objective of supporting safe, cohesive and resilient 
communities. It is therefore considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable 
impact upon the achievement of well-being objectives as a result of the proposed 
recommendation.  

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 Having regard to the detailing of the proposals, the potential impacts on the locality, and the 

particular tests of the relevant policies, the application is considered to be acceptable and is 
recommended for grant. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 

 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 9th February 

2027 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with details shown 

on the following submitted plans and documents unless specified as otherwise within any 
other condition pursuant to this permission: 

 (i) As proposed (Drawing No. E1514-1 Rev. A) received 5 January 2022  
 (ii) Existing site and location plan (Drawing No. E1514-2) received 25 November 2021 
 
3. All planting comprised in the approved details of landscaping shown on the proposed plans 

shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the completion of the 
development and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years of the development, 
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species. 

Page 146



4. No external lighting shall be installed without the formal written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority to the detailing of the proposed lighting. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details. 

 
 
The reasons for the conditions are:- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of development. 
3. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity. 
4. In the interest of the visual amenity of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and nature 
 conservation. 

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 APOLOGIES
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES
	5 APPLICATION NO. 02/2021/1179 - LAND AT (PART GARDEN OF) LLYS GWYN, BRYN GOODMAN, RUTHIN
	02-2021-1179
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	6 APPLICATION NO. 18/2021/0533 - GLAN Y WERN FARM, WHITCHURCH ROAD, LLANDYRNOG, DENBIGH
	18-2021-0533
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	7 APPLICATION NO. 23/2021/0927 - LAND ADJACENT TO DOLWAR, LLANRHAEADR, DENBIGH
	23-2021-0927
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	8 APPLICATION NO. 41/2021/1199 - BRYN FFYNNON, BODFARI, DENBIGH
	41-2021-1199
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



